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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
GalaR

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FFE-HA=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—EEHF —EFE—-NEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff 5% FET FETT
REVENUE EEIA 5 3,017,120 2,700,780
m Cost of sales HE K (2,479,261) (2,283,010)
2 Gross profit E7 537,859 417,770
= Other income and gains, net EMBARIKE 358 5 52,283 7,556
12'3 Selling and distribution expenses & &% #H5 X% (30,810) (33,345)
7 Administrative expenses THREAX (246,057) (197,186)
§ Finance costs B E B 6 (18,126) (12,120)
%’ PROFIT BEFORE TAX G IRl 7 295,149 182,675
= Income tax expense FriS 1 B % 10 (68,319) (44,527)
o
5 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 226,830 138,148
=
% Attributable to: Y -
% Owners of the Company ANEHEE A 223,458 140,418
S Non-controlling interests R EREED 3,372 (2,270)
% 226,830 138,148
EARNINGS PER SHARE E NGIE Z N
5B ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS sEREAN
g OF THE COMPANY 12
t Basic HAK HK42.0 cents HK27.7 cents
§ 42.0 #EAl 27.7 #BAL
e
el Diluted e HK42.0 cents HK27.7 cents
42.0 #EAl 27.7 #EAl

0202 LHOd3d TYNNNY

&

A
A/
N
&




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeEEBER

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_FE_FF-HA=+—HIFE

2020 2019

—EFHF —E—-hE

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FHEIT

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEF 226,830 138,148
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ HitemEmKiE (ZH)

(EXPENSE)
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
that will not be reclassified to profit or

RERBABANEF ]
EREDMHEMEE

loss in subsequent periods: W (ZH) -
Actuarial gain/(loss) on a defined benefit THEEBMBZHEE
plan Wi (E518) (114) 4,067
Other comprehensive expense that may be REZHABAERTEE
reclassified to profit or loss in BEaWEMeEXE
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of NEBIEBZERER
foreign operations (90,559) (75,642)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FEHEMte2mXEH
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (BEHIFRKRE) (90,673) (71,575)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEELERHARE
FOR THE YEAR 136,157 66,573
Attributable to: &Y -
Owners of the Company FNYNETEZZ=IN 134,078 68,639
Non-controlling interests R EER 2,079 (2,066)
136,157 66,573
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FaUBRRR

31 March 2020
¥ CFF-HA=+—H

2020 2019
—BEHF —E-AEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
f 5% FET FHBT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
m Property, plant and equipment MZE - BEKREE 13 840,563 924,268
2 Right-of-use assets EREEE 14(b) 170,519 —
m
=2 Prepaid land lease payments M L #EERE 14(a) - 130,270
A Goodwill Be 16 100,334 100,334
= Intangible assets EmEEE 17 13,400 16,817
% Deposits B& 15 13,768 35,271
§ Total non-current assets ERBEEZE 1,138,584 1,206,960
e
i— CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
= Inventories 7E 18 570,113 501,901
= Accounts and bills receivables EWERA R RiE 19 243,944 411,242
=z Prepayments, deposits and other FEfTFHIE - & K&
§ receivables H 1t FE KR 1B 15 77,528 96,515
o Tax recoverable ] W [8] #7 3X 2,475 7,503
o Pledged deposits EREEFER 20 - 15,204
Restricted bank balance = (R &l 8R 17 45 8% 20 547 585
= Cash and bank balances R& RIRITHEER 20 341,156 193,834
g Total current assets MENEEMRE 1,235,763 1,226,784
CE CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBaE
";; Accounts and bills payables FE T ERR R B 21 236,856 258,169
I Accrued liabilities and other EitaEk
payables HAth FE T TRIE 23 167,011 187,589
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t R IR{TE R 24 530,800 572,155
Lease liabilities HEa®& 14(c) 7,605 —
Tax payable fE iR 1E 46,999 37,308
>
= Total current liabilities nEaEEE 989,271 1,055,221
[
= NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEERE 246,492 171,563
§ TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT & EAEIMRAEEE&HE
§ LIABILITIES 1,385,076 1,378,523

&

A
A/
N
&




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

HEMBERAR(E)
31 March 2020
—E-s#ZAZ+—A

2020 2019

- Jan- .- 3 —F-NEF

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000

B 5% T#&T TFHET

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE

Pension scheme obligation BIAE R EI &I 25 16,868 14,321 m
Lease liabilities HEaE 14(c) 6,424 — 2
m
Deferred tax liabilities BEREASE 26 39,180 39,435 =
(x)
Total non-current liabilities EREBEEE 62,472 53,756 %
Net assets BEERE 1,322,604 1,324,767 g
EQUITY = g
Equity attributable to owners of A F#HE ABLER =
the Company =
Issued capital B TRA 27 5,320 5,320 =
=
Reserves #E 28 1,294,518 1,298,760 S
1,299,838 1,304,080 %
Non-controlling interests KRR E LR 22,766 20,687 S
Total equity EAXRMBEE 1,322,604 1,324,767 m
=
A
&
af
i
B>
Il
>
=
=
=
e
3
CHUNG YUK SING CHEN HSIAO YING 5
H#HEH BRI/ .
Director Director e
F EE N
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERRERR

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FFE-HA=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN EPN

Share Statutory  Exchange Non-
Issued  premium Capital surplus fluctuation  Retained controlling

capital  account reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total

B&fT K &% HE EX FEk
kx  HER e EBEE RBEE EFE1 4  RRE# act
(G HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
i3 TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
(Note 28)  (Note 28)
(Wizka8)  (Ri=as)

m
3
m
=
]
=
oo At 1 April 2018 RZ5-)\fF@E-H 4,997 472,586 (229) 56,547 98,004 639,402 1,271,307 — 1,271,307
E Profit for the year EERT) 4 - - - — 0418 140418 (270 138148
> Other comprehensive income/(expense) EEHpEAKE/ () :
E for the year:
= Actuarial gain on a defined benefit plan TEENHEARE R - - - — — 4,067 4,067 — 4,067
g Exchange differences on translation of foreign  FEEAEKZEREE
= operations - - - - (75,846) - (75,846) 204 (75,642)
cé Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the & 2EWE/ (X H) A8
% year - Yy - = (75,846) 144,485 68,639 (2,066) 66,673
S Acquisition of subsidiaries KERBAR 29(b) - = = = = = = 22,753 22,753
B Transfer to reserve BRTHRE - = = 4,694 = (4,694) - - -
ps Issue of shares kb 2 33 98728 - - = — 94050 — 94051
Fina 2018 dividend Z5-)\EKERE 1 - - - - - b (63%%) - %)
5B Interim 2019 dividend ZR-NETERE 11 — - — = — (6995 (69,955 — (69,955
;;S At 31 March 2019 RZIE-NE=A=+-H 5,320 566,314* (229 61,241* 22,158*  649,276* 1,304,080 20687 1,324,767
ot At 1 April 2019 RZIZ-NFME-H 5,320 566,314 (229) 61,241 22,158 649,276 1,304,080 20,687 1,324,767
§ Profit for the year ERER = = = = — 34 2348 337 26830
ﬂ Other comprehensive expense EEHBEERL

for the year:

Actuarial loss on a defined benefit plan ERRAGEERER - - - - - (114) (114) - (114)

Exchange differences on translation of foreign BB EEZERER

operations - - - - (89,266) - (89,266) (1,293) (90,559)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the  EE2E M/ (X H) A8

]é year - - - - (89,266) 223,344 134,078 2,079 136,157
S Transfer to reserve BRTHRE = = = 10,101 — (10101 - - -
- Final 2019 dividend “E-NEREBRE 11 = = = = - (31920 (31,920 - 31920
% Interim 2020 dividend ZEISEPHEE " = = = = —  (106,400)  (106,400) —  (106,400)
g At 31 March 2020 RZZEZSE=A=+-H 5,320 566,314* (229 71,342%  (67,108)* 724,199 1,299,838 22,766 1,322,604
N
o

& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of @ ZERBRBBEHRNGEVBERARNGEEHE
HK$1,294,518,000 (2019: HK$1,298,760,000) in the consolidated 1,294,518,000% 7T (ZF—Hh% : 1,298,760,000
statement of financial position. BIT) °

—&
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GEHERER

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=F=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—BEF —E-AEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff 5% FET FHBT
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBELEZRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R 72 A1 358 A 295,149 182,675 >
Adjustments for: BUTIEBRE m
Finance costs A& B A 6 18,126 12,120 =
Bank interest income RITFI BN 5 (1,930) (1,695) =
Depreciation of property, plant ME- BERIETE é
and equipment 7 85,777 72,621 2
Depreciation of right-of-use FEHEESERNSE jé
assets 7 14,073 = £
Amortisation of prepaid land FEfT L EFRIE =
lease payments 7 - 2,485 g
Amortisation of intangible B EEEE =
assets 7 3,417 2,947 =
Loss on disposal and write-off HERMBEDE  BE KX =
of items of property, plant REEBHEIR S
and equipment 7 2,072 317 Er
Write-off of other payables HMEMRIEEH 7 (2,371) — b
Income derived from financial BAFEFNETNERE
assets at fair value through BEMSKE k.
profit or loss 7 (1,528) (1,184) g
412,785 270,286 o
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 7F& R (3h0) (68,212) 37,070 ‘g
Decrease/(increase) in accounts  FEUBR sk & Z /b (1E10) ul
and bills receivables 167,298 (23,541)
Decrease/(increase) in FEMNRE REk
prepayments, deposits and Ho ity FE W R IE LD (48 h0)
other receivables 15,040 (8,926)
Decrease in accounts and bills FE T BR R BB R D =
payables (21,313) (57,097) &
Decrease in accrued liabilities and [& 5t & & K E fth FE f —
other payables RIER D (18,207) (22,507) §
Increase in pension scheme BRAREFHEI&EEM =
liabilities 5,258 5,044 S
Settlement of pension scheme  4SERAEHEERE =
liabilities (176) (156) "
Decrease in a restricted bank PR &SR 1T A BRI D Jw'|
balance 38 2,054 b
Exchange realignment BEE 52 5 B2 (21,535) (20,753) Q%
Cash generated from operations &EE4LXZIRE 470,976 181,474
Interest paid EMFE (18,126) (12,120)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEEFER (17,230) (15,013)
Overseas tax paid B8R IE (34,714) (24,166)
Net cash flows from operating REREEBLRZ
activities HE&Ene#E 400,906 130,175
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HERERER(E)

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF-HF=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—BEHF —E-AEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% FET FHBT
CASH FLOWS FROM REKREFTBZRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of items HEYE  ME&&E
of property, plant and HEAMASRERE
equipment, net 2,079 1,002
Purchases of items of property, BEYXE WMENKXEER
plant and equipment (92,089) (96,348)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB B A F 29 - (190,286)
Interest received B F 2 1,930 1,695
Income derived from financial BAFEFANETN SR
assets at fair value through BERSKE
profit or loss 1,528 1,184
Decrease/(increase) in non-current %<& 3E 8282 5@ /D, (3L 40)
portion of deposits 21,503 (21,334)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BB EFCRLD (3G M)
deposits 15,204 (5,941)
Increase in time deposit with REEREIHEBBR=ME
original maturity of more than B E E7E FUE N
three months when acquired (43,778) =
Net cash flows used in investing HARBREFTH 2HEERE
activities FE (93,623) (310,028)
CASH FLOWS FROM REMETBZRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New/(repayment of) bank loans, 7% ({E&)RITEX
net HE (41,355) 296,615
Dividends paid ENMKRE (138,320) (129,917)
Principal portion of lease HEREXEHBD
payments (7,425) —
Net cash flows from/(used in) RE(AR) MEEFEN
financing activities RERERE (187,100) 166,698
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN R&ERBEESFEEREM
CASH AND CASH (R R {E
EQUIVALENTS 120,183 (13,155)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNzREkES£%EER
beginning of year 193,834 222,870
Effect of foreign exchange rate  FEER# &)~ & 2 3% E
changes, net (16,639) (15,881)
CASH AND CASH FRZ2BEEREEEEHER
EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 297,378 193,834




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

GERERER(E)
Year ended 31 March 2020
BE T _FF=F=+—HIFE

2020 2019

=L EETE =

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
e FER FER

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF HRE&£XkRBE&£EEHEEHZ

CASH AND CASH KEER AR m
EQUIVALENTS 2
Cash and bank balances HE RIBITHER 20 265,051 209,623 T
Non-pledged time deposit with REERREEEHAE S
original maturity of more than B =EA %
three months when acquired BIRPEHER 20 43,778 — 3
Non-pledged time deposit with  FAES R Z/H H =
original maturity of less than TBE=EAHN J%)
three months when acquired BEREEHER 20 32,874 — =
Less: Restricted bank balance B 52 PRl SR 1T 45 Bk 20 (547) (585) =
Less: Pledged deposits HOCEREER 20 - (15,204) %
Cash and cash equivalents as BEMBRAIRAEZ =
stated in the consolidated HeEkRE&EEER E
statement of financial position 341,156 193,834 -
Less: Non-pledged time deposits & :REXSEERZIE H it
with original maturity of BR=EAMN

more than three months EIRFEHER B

when acquired 20 (43,778) == g

Cash and cash equivalents GEREMNERMEAZ o
as stated in the consolidated HeEkBE£EEER g
statement of cash flows 297,378 193,834 ul
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NOTES T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W8 &R W ot

31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands.
The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Units 0902-0903 and 0905-0906, 9/F, Tower
B, Regent Centre, 70 Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

AR REBEH

ARBARAESEHETMBRIZARA
8 o &N X &) 5F it Bt 35 B #E 3k B Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands c AR B 2 F EEEMEUNRE
B R ZERITIEEET70RER T OBEA
1£0902-0903 % &% 0905-0906 = °

FEEZIEXBREEREEEHR

The Group's principal activities are the manufacture and

B9 B3 (HE)EH  0ILINNSONIAI0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) 3IIN 319V3

trading of sportswear and garments.

R AR

Information about subsidiaries MBARZER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ANBEFEERBASTIFEUT
follows:

Place of Percentage of equity

incorporation/ attributable to

registration and Issued share/paid-up t_he Company

business registered capital A 23 5 A5 4 53 L
Name AL ERTRE 2020 2019  Principal activities
AERE BRREEME BREAMES b el 2 —T—hEF O EEEHR
Eagle Nice (EAG) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2; Non-voting deferred 100 100  Investment holding
BxE(BEEE) ERAA &5 HK$10,000 (Note (a)) (2019: RERKR

Ordinary HK$2; Non-voting
deferred HK$10,000)
LER2E T BB EERETKR
10,0007 7T (Fff & (a) )
(ZB—NGF LBERET

1% TR TR 10,0008 7T)
WECLE) WERBRAE The People’s Republic  US$23,500,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
("YM (Shantou)”) (Notes (b) and (d)) of China (“PRC")/ (2019: US$23,500,000) sportswear and garments
(485 Clizg) 1) (B 3% (b) B (d)) Mainland China 23,500,000% 7T SEREEEHREAK
= HEARJAE (ZF—N% :23,500,000%TT)
= (M@, HFEKE
=
c
p= Eagle Nice Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100  Manufacture and trading of
= BEBRBRAA ] (2019: HK$1) sportswear and garments
=2 1BT(ZF—AE 1BT) HEERBHEESHRRAK
=
S Maitex (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100  Manufacture and trading of
§ R (MEEE) ERAAF &5 (2019: HK$1,000) sportswear and garments
1,000 7T AERBEEEIRRAK
|l (ZF—A%F :1,000%87T)
ol
|1 ERBRHEXERAR PRC/Mainland China HK$40,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
] (“Maitex PRC") (Notes (b) and (d)) R B K R (2019: HK$40,000,000) sportswear and garments
il (M AR3E ) (W 20 R () 40,000,000 ¢ EEREEEDERAK
g (ZF—A% :40,000,00077T)
LB TR RERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 80 80 Manufacture and trading of
("Hubei Dongneng”) (Notes (c) and (d))  HR B/ B K & (2019: RMB100,000,000) sportswear and garments
(M Eh e ) (B &E(0) K (d) ) A E#100,000,0007T SEREREHRRAK
(ZB—N&E :
A R #100,000,0007T)
Pro Kingtex Vietnam Co., Limited Vietnam US$7,800,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(Note (d)) 21 (2019: US$1,800,000) sportswear and garments

(P%E())

7,800,000% 75
(ZF—H% :1,800,000% 7T)

SERBEREBHRRBK



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRKE(R)
31 March 2020
—E_EFF=Z/F=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
|NFORMAT|ON (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

rEIREEER @

MEBABZER &)

Percentage of equity

Place of N
incorporation/ att:rll::utable to ;
registration and Issued share/paid-up _e ompany D
business registered capital A4 R A 2 E 5 r'-n
Name i E&TkKE/ 2020 2019  Principal activities 2
GRS BRERERME HEEMEE el b T E FEER @
BEFMEXRERAF PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 80 80 Manufacture and trading of E
("EN (Jingmen)”) (Notes (c) and (d)) HE/ REKE (2019: RMB5,000,000) sportswear and garments =
(W83 (FUF9) 1) (B 2 (c) Re(d)) A E#5,000,0007C EERBEREHRRAK =
(Z2—NF : A K¥5,000,0007T) =
o
King Eagle (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 (2019: HK$1) 100 100  Manufacture and trading of ;Z>
SE(EXLE)ERAA &% BT (ZF—AE 18T) sportswear and garments =
HEREEEIRRHERK =z
=
ERBEEUKRERAR PRC/Mainland China US$4,000,000 100 100  Manufacture and trading of %
("Hung Eagle Garment”) (Notes (b) and (d)) B/ EIKEE (2019: US$4,000,000) sportswear and garments )
(MBREM ) (M) R (d)) 4,000,000% 7T EERBEREHRREK 2
(ZF—AL% :4,000,000%7T) =
=
Eagle Nice (Indonesia) Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 (2019: HKS$1) 100 100  Investment holding 8
Bx(ENR)ERERRA 5E 1BT(ZF—NE 1BT) RERR -
P.T. Eagle Nice Indonesia Indonesia US$32,000,000 100 100  Manufacture and trading of )|-|H:
("EN Indonesia”) enfe (2019: US$32,000,000) sportswear and garments =
EEER) 32,000,000% 7% AERERADRRAR
(ZB—H%F :32,000,000%75) 5
Eagle Nice (Jiangxi) Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding ;;S
B CIAE) HXERRAE EE (2019: HK$10,000) REER ot
10,0008 7 =
(ZB—N%E 10,0007 z
>
EXEE)UXRERAF PRC/Mainland China US$25,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of all
("EN (Yifeng)") (Notes (b) and (d)) HE/ REKE (2019: US$25,000,000) sportswear and garments
(T (EE) ) (M b Kd) 25,000,000% 7T EERBEREHRRAK
(ZZ—AL% :25,000,000% 7T)
Notes: fEaE -
(@)  The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, (a) FERZREER L EEFERKE - BF

REREHEGTLRE  TEETERR
BEARESEMMNGEECERRER
i % 4% £2100,000,000,000,0007% 7T 43" ik
FREAEEBRFEAR  BRKOZHE
HARIIESLE WEAEFRI) ©

no rights to attend or vote at general meetings and no rights
to receive any surplus assets in a return of capital in a
winding-up (other than the nominal amount paid up or
credited as paid-up on such shares, after the sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the
company in such winding-up).

0202 LHOd3d TYNNNY

—&"

WMECWE)  BRERY BEREERER
(BE8) ARBHBEEEIMZIBBED

(b) YM (Shantou), Maitex PRC, Hung Eagle Garment and EN (b)
(Yifeng) are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises

MbhbE

under PRC law.

%o

(c) Hubei Dongneng and EN (Jingmen) are registered as limited (c) At ENBE R E = (FIFT) AIRBHEIAER
liability companies under PRC law. MZBEREELA °
(d)  The statutory financial statements of these entities are not (d) ZEEBNEEMERRALEER

= &

A=
audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member FTENEBAT SR KEBREEEMEE N
firm of the Ernst & Young global network. B
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEBEERRE(R)

31 March 2020

&=

2.1

EFE=F=+—4

CORPORATE AND GROUP
|NFORMAT|ON (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2020. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

2.1

rEIREEER @

MBABZER ®)
ERFRENBABBRARNEBERES -

ERINEAREDWBELE  REEERR
B REQDHAEEFNEREEERY
EYBUAEEEEFEZITERD - &
EFERERRR  FIHMNBLREERE
ERERIEARITR -

B
WEMBRRDREBEEREEHAMLE
([BEBEMLE )R ZEBMBRE
HER((BEBMBREEN D) (P EER
EEBVBHREEN FBEGHEMN(EH
BEFEND RERE)  BEAREIR
AIREBREREAZKBERERE - IbF
MBEBRIRBELAAERER  ERAQ
FEFABZNERMEERN  HHER
FEFE - BRABEFAS WHRKRIYU
B (BT 2% MAEEEYENER
ANEREHEZTA -

mERE
BEMBRREFBFLARARENBEAF
(B AEBNDBE_S_FF=A
=+—BHLEFEZMBRER WEBLEE
RAEARNBEEHEEEFHNER (B8
BHEEER) HAKEEBSHEEFKRES
EBEMEEREENCSRREANI &
O BRENTEERRESTNENR
EERHEE  IAEEEEZERNES
BANRNEFAREEERIRETHEE
SEERENNIREET) -



2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRKE(R)
31 March 2020
—E_EFF=Z/F=+—H

2.1 G EXE )

REEE®

AR EEIBEREENRRET R
SRBELENTRFE AIFFHEARR
HERETEEHEENK AEEHES
BFAIBHEREERER 81 :

(a) HEZFRKEFTHMREEEEAN

BHRTH

b) MBEMENZHAEZENET
&

0 FEENREENEGERERE-

B R RREREKSHENMBERSE
AN S BEREANEMABIAT - i
BAEZEEUBAEENSEHEZ
B ERE  LERRIEHIEA LA

BEEETAN -

ARBHEEARFERERREDREGEE
mREMEEKES AR - BIERL
SIBFERBRREDGHRRAEBTR - K
EERERRAZEARSMELENEEN
REERGE #xm BN XHERE
REHNEGERERESBEE -

HEBERBERLER EXAANZRES
RAHEZ-EHHLZANREZE AEEEE
HAEHESEHERIREQR - MBAR
WAEREDEE CREREERNE) &
BB AR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continuea)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary; (i) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest; and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received; (i) the fair value of any investment retained;
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in the income
statement. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to the income statement or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
standards for the first time for the current year's
financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
HKFRS 16 Leases
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement
Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures
Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 3,

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23

2.1

2.2

MR EE w

REERE S
HAEBREHNBEBAR 2 =H# - 85
BRERNZMBRAEZEE (BERE) X
BE (MEMFEREREDZ ZREE
RiiFt NEmZ REHER ERR LR
(NWERREZRFE ((EAREREZ
ANFE RV ERPEAELEEZ
BERTEIE - AT E A2 i PR
ZEREEBGHOETIEERTRN
BEaf (ER)  MASEEEENE
HEAEENGBENANR —EERER -

BRI EEE

AEERAFEMBHRERREREMAUT
M RGBT LR -

EREUBREEN BEFEHEZIENEN
EXEACH) FFIE

EEMBREEN HE
£16%

BB G ER ETEIEET - BB A
H1998 1857

BB G ER REELFGREELF
H289R1ERT IR A E 2

&% (ERUBRE FEREENTHETE
HEZET)
TEEE23%R

EEMBHREER TBEMBERESEA
—E-AEZFE 3 BAME
-t EHY HELREIR
HE E 28 EE G ERE125%

EESGEL

SB235R1ER]



2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DlSCLOSURES (continued)

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
HKFRS 16 Leases and Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan
Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement, the adoption of
the above new and revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

(a)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases  —
Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form
of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, except for certain
recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under
HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from HKAS
17. Lessors continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar principles
as in HKAS 17.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method with the date of
initial application of 1 April 2019. Under this
method, the standard has been applied
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at 1 April 2019,
and the comparative information for 2019 was not
restated and continued to be reported under HKAS
17 and related interpretations.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBBRME(E)
31 March 2020
ECFFZH=+—H

22 SRR RIBEEEE »

BRTXHAEREREMBRELERNE6
REEREBGERE19REET )
EFT - AR B A E R BN AL LR
ARG ZENNZFVY BRI E
EXMBRE-

(a)

EREMBRELUNBIGRMAETE
S ENE1TREE & (BEM
BREREZRE Q) REBIRES
LHES OIEEAY - B8 (ERRE
ZER) BB ISREEHEFERR
BB (EAEBEEG)2EHE2R
FlEEREEEEEAKRZZA
F-ZHEAUAEHREHERR 7
B EIMKERA - I ERAHR
ANEE-—EERBERANREPHE
FREHE DERRAEBEREE
ERAERE  HEETEIRBRER
oo BERMBRELENFEI6RAK
HREBEFENE17TRAEEAA
MEsRETN HEAEERER
HEEBGENBI7REBNERA
REESTRAKLHENMEMNE -

AEEEEAKEIEWRAER
MEBMBHREEMNEI6K BX
ERBHA-F-HhEWMA—H-
RBUL TR ZEREREME
B BRXRENNRFRZEFERIR
HRZF-NFHA-—HZERER
TV ERNRAE BE-F—AF
MERERNTAEES  MEELE
REEFEBEFENF17RREEREZE
BHS-
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DlSCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys a right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset and the right to direct the use of
the identified asset. The Group elected to use the
transition practical expedient allowing the standard
to be applied only to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16 has been applied only to contracts entered into
or changed on or after 1 April 2019.

22 SRR RIEEEE »
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DlSCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified
as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
land and plant. As a lessee, the Group previously
classified leases as either finance leases or
operating leases based on the assessment of
whether the lease transferred substantially all the
rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the
Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies a single
approach to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for
two elective exemptions for leases of low-value
assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis) and
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
("“short-term leases”) (elected by class of
underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental
expenses under operating leases on a straight-line
basis over the lease term commencing from 1 April
2019, the Group recognises depreciation (and
impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets and
interest accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities
(as finance costs).

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 April 2019 were recognised
based on the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate at 1 April 2019. The right-of-use
assets were measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease
recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before 1 April 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment
based on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected
to present the right-of-use assets separately in the
statement of financial position.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 March 2020
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DlSCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified
as operating leases (continued)

Impact on transition (continued)

For the leasehold land previously included in
property, plant and equipment and prepaid land
lease payments, the Group has reclassified these
lease payments as right-of-use assets.

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 April
2019:

° Applying the short-term lease exemptions to
leases with a lease term that ends within 12
months from the date of initial application;

° Using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to
extend/terminate the lease;

o Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics when measuring the lease
liabilities at 1 April 2019;

o Excluding initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application; and

o Accounting for the lease component and the
associated non-lease component (e.g.,
property management services for leases of
properties) as a single lease component.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 March 2020
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DlSCLOSURES (continued)

22 SRR RIBEEEE »

(a) (continued) (a) (&

Financial impact at 1 April 2019 R-CFE—ANFENE—HHAE
24 m
The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 RIEFE—NFOAR—HENEEM B
at 1 April 2019 was as follows: BREENFICGEAMEEANTZEW E
T S
=
Increase/ ﬁ
(decrease) %
0GR 2
HK$'000 =
TET =
Assets BE é
Increase in right-of-use assets EREEEEM 194,079 =
Decrease in prepaid land lease payments FEfT L EIE R D (130,270) E
Decrease in property, plant and equipment ME - BB REERD (37,797) -
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other FEfTFIE - & Kk H M fE W kI8 it
receivables pERS (3,947)
Increase in total assets BEZEEM 22,065 ;v?;
Liabilities =R ﬁ
Increase in lease liabilities fHE & &L 22,065 R,T'\n
Increase in total liabilities BEREEM 22,065 E

The lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 reconciled to
the operating lease commitments as at 31 March

RIB-AFMHA—HNEEARE
HER-ZFB-—NAF=ZA=Z1+—HHK

2019 are as follows: EHEARENHERAOT - -
=
HK$'000 =
THET i
(e)
Operating lease commitments as at AZE-AFE=ZB=1+—HHK 3
31 March 2019 SRR 23,750 S
Less: Commitments relating to short-term BOHEEHHEERAGEEHRE I
leases and those leases with a ZEIFF=A=+—H= 'ﬁ(
remaining lease term ended on or Z AR EB RN AL ﬁ
before 31 March 2020 (297) g
23,453
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate R_ZF—HEMB —HMW
as at 1 April 2019 NAE 35 18 2 18 A = 3.96%
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 AZFE-—NFHEA—H®
HE&E 22,065
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DlSCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 19 address the accounting
for a defined benefit plan when a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement occurs during a reporting
period. The amendments specify that when a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs
during the annual reporting period, an entity is
required to (i) determine current service cost for
the remainder of the period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement using the
actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability or asset reflecting the
benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets
after that event, and (ii) determine net interest for
the remainder of the period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement using the
net defined benefit liability or asset, reflecting the
benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets
after that event and the discount rate used to
remeasure that net defined benefit liability or
asset.

The amendments also clarify that an entity first
determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss
on settlement, without considering the effect of the
asset ceiling. This amount is recognised in the
income statement. An entity then determines the
effect of the asset ceiling after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement. Any change
in that effect, excluding amounts included in net
interest, is recognised in other comprehensive
income. The amendments did not have any
significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EEGENRERNNEEM

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HIREER
STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and AEEBWRRGEEMBRRPERATI
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet EBEMERERZHITREBINES
effective, in these financial statements. MRS AR - m
(2]
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business’ BEVLREEANEIRE] XEZEH E
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark BEEMBREENERR FIERENE =}
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform’ EREHEAERR %
EBUMBREENENR =
831 =
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of BEMBREENFORR KREZHAHELAAGE ]%)
and HKAS 28 (2011) Assets between an BB R85 PEZEHEELED =
Investor and its (CE3—H)E EE g
Associate or Joint é
Venture? %
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent BEMBREENERE] LHETHREEHIEE =
Concessions? 7.4 “
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?® BERMBRSENETR REEHF E
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’ BEEGHENEIFREEL T EAZTH
and HKAS 8 85585 (53]) E
o5
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January L RIBZEF—F—HIZERHBZEE =
2020 HEAX E
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 2 RIBZEFRNA—HIZERABZEE g
H S A 5K el
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January g RIF_—F—A—HIZERABRZEE
2021 HE4AEX
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for 8 i R E sl A R H B - M AT R AN
adoption
Further information about those HKFRSs that are VEHEANRAEBRN S S M RB S L
expected to be applicable to the Group is described ZHE—S SRR T -
below.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable
of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition of
outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 April 2020. Since the amendments
apply prospectively to transactions or other events that
occur on or after the date of first application, the Group
will not be affected by these amendments on the date
of transition.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will
depend on the nature or magnitude of information. A
misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in the income statement as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets and deferred tax
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's
or cash-generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) bhas significant influence over the Group; or
(ii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

(continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in

progress,

are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Buildings 30 to 50 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
lease terms or 20%
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%

Furniture, fixtures, equipment 20%

and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Customer relationship is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of 6 years.

Backlog is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 1
year.

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that
contains a lease component and a non-lease component,
the Group adopts the practical expedient not to separate
the non-lease component and to account for the lease
component and the associated non-lease component

(e.g.,

property management services for leases of

properties) as a single lease component.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 30 to 60 years
Plant 3 to 6 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery
and equipment (that is those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases
of office equipment.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases (applicable before 1 April 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets KEREMEMEE
Initial recognition and measurement L EERE

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that do
not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)
The Group's business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
also recognised as other income in the income
statement when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:
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flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are more than 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general
approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for accounts
receivable which apply the simplified approach as

detailed below.

Stage 1 —

Stage 2 —

Stage 3 —

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRKE(R)
31 March 2020
—E_EFF=Z/F=+—H

24 FETHTBRERBME @

TR EEREE

— A= (4E)

REBE—RTE BAFEFANEME2EK
HHEBRERRBHEAART RO SR
BEEARERBELR TIEERDELUG
ERNEEERE ERKKRERRS &
FEHERBTXHFRZBLTEE -

F—lER — HMEEXRERUREE
2\ B2 37 42 B8 3= 38 h0 K S
BEERSFRIEARE
HEEBRETRITEN
ERMTA
MEBERERUREE
[2\ B BR BE 1B 0B 3 3E {5
ERETHMEENEGIE
BEREFAFRNEAELRS
FEEREEFENSE
MIE
RRBEEHHERER
ERE(EFEBATREK
ERLEERE) REBIE
BEREFAFRNEAELRS
FEEREEFENSE
& E

278 B0 = (5 PEl) 22 8 QILINIT SONITT0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) JIIN 319V3

0202 LHOd3d TYNNNY

—&"

MbhbE




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBEHME »

B9 B3 (HE)EH  0ILINNSONIAI0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) 3IIN 319V3

0202 LHOd3d TYNNNY

&

A
A/
il
&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
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forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.

Financial liabilities EMEE

Initial recognition and measurement IR TER R 51 E

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and bills
payables, financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities
and other payables, interest-bearing bank borrowings and
lease liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and bank balances comprise cash
on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are
not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside the income
statement is recognised outside the income statement,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

Frig#t (&)
BEERESBERMEERREREER
MR BRTIERS ¢

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial . EXBERERN—EHEBESH
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a REFTHNHEFEEREE UK
transaction that is not a business combination and, RETRSFIE/EZETHEMK
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the ERREFAEENREREA
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and B &

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
the same taxable entity.

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the
expenditure incurred in the construction cost of an
infrastructure project, are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to
an asset, the fair value is deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the income
statement by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’'s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Defined contribution plans (continued)

In addition, the Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”)
for those employees who are eligible to participate in the
Retirement Scheme. Contributions to the Retirement
Scheme are charged to the income statement as
incurred. The Retirement Scheme operates in a similar
way to the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee
leaves the Retirement Scheme before his/her interest in
the Group's employer contributions vests fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Group are reduced
by the relevant amount of the forfeited employer
contributions.

The employees of the Group’'s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China and Vietnam are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme for their
employees who are registered as permanent residents in
Mainland China and Vietnam. The contributions are
charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from the defined benefit
pension plan, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest) and
the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of
financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained profits through other comprehensive income in
the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to the income statement in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in the income
statement at the earlier of:

° the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

° the date that the Group recognises restructuring-
related costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and
“administrative expenses” in the income statement by
function:

° service costs comprising current service costs, past
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and

non-routine settlements; and

° net interest expense or income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
income statement.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The
gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or the income statement is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or the
income statement, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their income statements are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, their
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

EEEHE REFe

Estimation uncertainty (continued) et Z2ArEEE &)
Impairment of goodwill HERE

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2020 was
HK$100,334,000 (2019: HK$100,334,000). Further details
are given in note 16 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts
receivable

The Group takes into consideration information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
accounts receivable. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the wholesale sector, the historical default
rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

AEERVEFECHEESSEMRE -
EERAGLHABNENEIREZRESESE
BluzEREE- - GFHEMREER  £%
ARG REELEUMELEZERA
RREME TEEEGEZTRE Y
AEZEREREBZRE BERIFZ
FEF-ZRAR=Zt+T-—HZEEHES
100,334,000 7T (ZF— 14 :100,334,000
BIT) E—DERENRMBEHRRMIEE16 -

BRI RIS B R IRZE

FEERBSAPEEFHETENS &
R L B R AR AL B R R TR RN A S EH -
AEEERREREEFTERBBRAOE
HEEFRE BEXREEEHEBER
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BEEERVZAEENELTREE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts
receivable (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customers’ actual default in the
future.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable at 31 March
2020 was HK$240,068,000 (2019: HK$403,624,000).
Further details are given in note 19 to the financial
statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group determines that
there are five reportable operating segments, based on
the location of customers (the destination of sales),
including Mainland China, the United States of America
(the "USA"), Europe, Japan and others. These segments
are managed separately as each segment is subject to
risks and returns that are different from one another.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax
is measured consistently with the Group's profit before
tax except that interest income and other unallocated
income and gains, and unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT
|NFORMAT|ON (continued)

4,

REDHEER @)

2020 —EB-EF
Mainland
China USA Europe Japan Others Consolidated
RE A E EE] BR i BE HfitE =a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FERT FET FERT FERT
Segment revenue: DEEEBA ¢
Sales to external HEFHIRER
customers 1,343,710 772,607 447,396 93,510 359,897 3,017,120
Segment results DEEE 210,926 129,534 74,643 16,715 64,340 496,158
Interest income and FIERANREME
other unallocated NS
income and gains 52,283
Unallocated expenses KX H (253,292)
Profit before tax BRI AR F) 295,149
Income tax expense Fi8MEX (68,319)
Profit for the year AEEHR 226,830
Segment assets NEEE 919,553 376,162 297,450 53,835 227,255 1,874,255
Unallocated assets RIBEEE 500,092
2,374,347
Segment liabilities NEaRE 225,642 81,839 55,549 11,857 43,007 417,894
Unallocated liabilities KRR EE 633,849
1,051,743
Other segment HitEEN
information:
Depreciation and MEREH
amortisation 31,068 21,105 10,860 2,261 8,900 74,194
Unallocated amounts K& 29,073
103,267
Capital expenditure* BRI 41,795 14,782 10,936 2,288 8,053 77,854
Unallocated amounts K& 14,235
92,089
& Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and & EARAAXKRAEDE BB RKME -

equipment.
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OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BEHFER @
|NFORMA“ON&MW%W
2019 —EB—hE
Mainland
China USA Europe Japan Others  Consolidated o
HE KB EJE] BUM BEA HtiE RE E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
FTHETT FHET FHET FHET THET THET i
=
Segment revenue: DEEEBA ¢ o
Sales to external HEFTHNRER E
customers 1,097,635 725,423 419,467 80,337 377,918 2,700,780 :%)
Segment results DEEE 133,449 88,169 55,297 9,170 60,580 346,665 %
Interest income and FIERANREME =
other unallocated A BC BN\ B M 2 @
income and gains 7,556 %
Unallocated expenses  F#REXH (171,546) S
Profit before tax B0 A5 Al 182,675 i
Income tax expense Fi8MEX (44,527) &
Profit for the year KEERF 138,148 B
Segment assets NEEE 1,086,532 412,564 284,888 46,569 215,334 2,045,877 g
; )
Unallocated assets RIBEEE 387,867 =
Y
2,433,744 %
Segment liabilities NEEE 300,643 86,879 46,718 7,697 41,129 483,066
Unallocated liabilities K aE 625,911
1,108,977
Other segment Hitt &R - %
information: E
Depreciation and MEREH g
amortisation 22,098 16,402 8,673 1,897 7,714 56,784 3
Unallocated amounts KRS8 21,269 S
78,053 o
N |1
Capital expenditure* BRI 265,719 33,541 11,634 1,765 20,766 333,425 ig
Unallocated amounts KRS8 9,466 g
342,891
& Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and g EARINRAEYE BERIZE &

equipment and prepaid land lease payments including assets
from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

BN MBERE
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BENEEN @
|NFORMAT|ON (continued)
Geographical information — non-current assets WEEHN — EFREBEE

2020 2019
o —o-os LR
= HK$000 HK$'000
£ FET FHBT
= Hong Kong =55 23,683 19,701
o Mainland China S IEIPN 804,703 871,884
= Indonesia Efe 156,806 170,931
S Vietnam i) 53,058 44,110
e
= 1,038,250 1,106,626
o
=
=
2 The non-current asset information above is based on the LR EEEN CRREEMEME
% locations of the assets and excludes goodwill. BENESN  FAEEFHE-
=
=
b} Information about major customers EREEEFRNER
Revenue derived from sales to customers which HERNKRBEEAEBLEBA10%E LK
] contributed to over 10% of the total revenue of the EEWMT :
s Group is as follows:
=]
g 2020 2019
D> —E-FHF ZE-NE
Iy

HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET

Customer A ZBA 1,913,669 1,819,380
Customer B ®FB 559,557 553,259
z Customer C EEC 313,051 N/A*
= REA*
=
= 2,786,277 2,372,639
S
E=
E @ Revenue from sales to Customer C accounted for less than * RBEZE-FE-—AE=-A=+—HLEEE"
10% of the total revenue of the Group for the year ended EFECHHERANEAEBREZKA10%IL
j%" 31 March 2019. T
[
%' . == ==
ﬁ The above amounts include sales to groups of entities tREECER—HER(ZEEET L
P which are known to be under common control with REFHEEH)WHEE -

these customers.
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 5. BIKWAREMIKARIK
GAINS, NET o REE

An analysis of revenue is as follows: EEANZATAOT -

2020 2019
—EBE-FHF —_EF-NE ™
HK$’000 HK$'000 2
T#ET FET =
=
Revenue from contracts with REBFEFEHONEZEIRAN m
customers 5
— sale of sportswear and garments — BEERERBRKRHEE 3,017,120 2,700,780 :Z:
=
=
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFGHNEERA %
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) HBEEEKUNEZH =
(«p)
wn
2020 2019 §
- - 3.2 3 —EB-NE S
HK$'000 HK$'000 -
TET FET b
Geographical markets hiZiE R
Mainland China EHEPN S 1,343,710 1,097,635 S
USA £H 772,607 725,423 ﬁ
Europe BOM 447,396 419,467 =
Japan SEN 93,510 80,337 E
Others Hthh &= 359,897 377,918
3,017,120 2,700,780
(ii) Performance obligation (i) BHEFE >
Sale of sportswear and garments EERER L KIHE g
The performance obligation is satisfied upon BHEERRINEYRTTR - M 5
delivery of the goods and payment is generally due R—RERMRB—E2=EBNEE - 3
within one to three months from delivery. S
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at AREHEZEERAREYEHIE ‘I%I[
the point in time when control of goods is ERRPRER  —RBELEERAM 1!
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery B -

MbhbE

of the goods.
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 5. &3UgA\ K H MK K IK

GAINS, NET (continued) o RE
An analysis of other income and gains, net is as follows: HMBARKE  FEZ22FUOT -

2020 2019
m - =~ 3 —EB-AE
B HK$'000 HK$'000
= T#ET THET
E Bank interest income RATFI RN 1,930 1,695
é Income derived from financial assets ZAFEFABZNEME
% at fair value through profit or loss ENKA 1,528 1,184
g; Government grants* B 48 B * 44,532 4,031
= Loss on disposal and write-off of HERMBEDE  BRE KX
=z items of property, plant and REEEZER F8
g equipment, net (2,072) (317)
1% Write-off of other payables Hh FE A FRIEEE 8 2,371 —
= Compensation income fHEE WA 1,932 —
= Others Hfth 2,062 963
™ 52,283 7,556
b
R * Various government grants have been received for enterprises 3 RABEAEREEBENLCETES BN
FITS’T engaged business in Mainland China for promoting the local BIMRERMELZRBEIME -ZFHE
& business development and employment. There are no b $ i8 RFER RSB RA AT I -
EE unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these
‘g; grants.
Tl

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. MIERE

2020 2019
= BB F —EB-NE
;% HK$°000 HK$'000
= T#&ET TFHET
:_E% Interest on bank loans RITERF B 17,434 12,120
E Interest on lease liabilities (note 14(c)) HEE&GEH B (HiE14(c)) 692 —

18,126 12,120

—&

EEEE
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBEEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBEBRMETEALIOR(FTN) TA&
(crediting): HERF/L
2020 2019
—BEHF —_EF-NE ™
HK$'000 HK$'000 2
T#ET FHET =
Cost of inventories sold EEFEMRR 2,479,261 2,283,010 E
Auditor's remuneration T SR B = 3,779 3,980 5
Depreciation of property, plant and  #%  BERZHITE %
equipment (note 13)* (PMEEE13) * 85,777 72,621 =
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERESENE E

(note 14(b))* (Mt EE14(b) ) * 14,073 = =
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TR L FH E I 8 %

payments (note 14(a))* (FFEE14(a) ) * - 2,485 &
Amortisation of intangible assets EmREEEN(WEFE17) =

(note 17) 3,417 2,947 =
Employee benefit expenses BERIXZXE (FEHEEEK =

(excluding directors’ and chief THRBESME — KES) - i3

executive's remuneration —

note 8): EL

Wages and salaries ITERFE 692,736 582,404 g

Pension contributions, including a BASHR  SFR ot

pension cost for a defined EEBAGEINRAKRE E
benefit plan of HK$5,258,000 X A5,258,0007 JT ul|
(2019: HK$5,044,000) (note 25) (ZF—N% :5,044,000

B IT) (M 5E25) 118,278 104,687

Less: Forfeited contributions/ BRI R - —

Net pension contributions BAESHATEE 118,278 104,687 2
Total employee benefit expenses* RESEHMZH* 811,014 687,091 j%
Foreign exchange differences, net ERER  FEE (503) 1,205 =
Minimum lease payments under RERNTZREBEERIE* %

operating leases* - 5,688 8
Lease payments not included in the AEtAHEGGEFENHEE =

measurement of lease liabilities RIE (M sE14(d) ) * ,'w'|

(note 14(d))* 297 = ,le|
Loss on disposal and write-off of HERMBEYE  BERX ﬁ

items of property, plant and BIEEZEIE 38 F

equipment, net 2,072 317
Wirite-off of other payables Hth FE {4 SRIE 5 86 (2,371) —

Income derived from financial assets EAFEFAEBRZHER
at fair value through profit or loss EENKA (1,528) (1,184)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 7. l!?m Al o Fl )
At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group had no forfeited RZFBZIFERZF-NE=Z=R=+—
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the B AEEBEWEEZKHERATARKNER
pension scheme in future years. REERAKBEEIRHER -
@ Included in the respective balances are the following amounts * BEAGRPEEUTHALXAEEES
which are also included in the cost of inventories sold FERAZEHE -
disclosed above:
2020 2019
—BBHF —F-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERZEINE
equipment 57,310 51,674
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREEERE 13,467 —
Amortisation of prepaid land lease FAM LA ERIE
payments - 2,163
Employee benefit expenses BERF X 690,843 600,877
Minimum lease payments under RERANTZREBEERE
operating leases - 5,688
Lease payments not included in the AFAHEBEFENHERE
measurement of lease liabilities 297 —
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EFRITHEHM=E
EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the AEEEERTHRATZMEREBET B
year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the ERBMEBRLAZSLHRE - FEQ
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong ERBIEE383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (c) K (IR KA E]
Kong Limited, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the (BRESAZER) ROAIE2MEEAOT -

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2020 2019

—EEHF —EFE—NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

Fees e 471 456

Other emoluments: HEiiE -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in ¥ & 2 LAEYET

kind 12,340 10,039

Discretionary bonuses B 15 E 4L 10,789 6,716

Pension scheme contributions BIAREFHEIE R 1,344 1,288

24,473 18,043

24,944 18,499




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRMWE(E)
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Salaries,
allowances Pension

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EFNITHEEME =
EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION
(continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BWIAIFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive FERNAFRALFERNTEEZHESU
directors during the year were as follows: T z
=
2020 2019 %
—_BEHF —_EFB-NE =
HK$°000 HK$'000 =
T S -
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho BREREE 157 152 J%’
Mr. Lu Chi Chant ErRE %% 157 152 =
Ms. Tham Kit Wan BERELZT 157 152 =
471 456 5
=
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRNLEEMEMBLIERNTES =
independent non-executive directors during the year ZHE(ZE—NF &) &
(2019: Nil). B
5
(b) Executive directors (b) BMITES e
5
poil
B
el

and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
FEEUR BiRE
e ENEH g4 SHEI R MEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FER FET FER FET =
2020 k- o= - 3 %
Executive directors: HTES - 3
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing BB %4 =
("Mr. Chung")* ([ExED* - 3,842 3,943 532 8,317 =
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying  BR/N\E L4 - 3,602 3,745 499 7,846 X
Mr. Huang Yongbiao — ZXKEEHE P!
(“Mr. Huang")* ([&xE))? - 1,757 2,901 17 4,675 l%'l
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, BHFEX L I
Christina - 2,586 163 296 3,045 e
Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan ZHE£%4%
(“Mr. Lee")" ([ZHE]) - 292 22 - 314
Mr. Hu Dien Chien LS s
("Mr. Hu")¥ ([EAkE])" - 261 15 - 276

- 12,340 10,789 1,344 24,473
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MBEHRRMWE(E)
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EFRITHAERMEw
EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION
(continued)
(b) Executive directors (continued) (b) BITER#®E
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e EBK BikE
ik BENET BBTE4L HERETA < 4a%8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET BT FTET BT THET
2019 ZZ-hE
Executive directors: HITES :
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing EEARLE — 3,730 3,642 517 7,889
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying BNE & — 3,497 2,984 484 6,965
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, BEELL
Christina y— 2,529 79 287 2,895
Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan ~ ZFHE2%4E — 283 11 — 294
— 10,039 6,716 1,288 18,043
& Mr. Chung is also the Chairman and the Chief Executive * BRETAARRBRNERE RITEHA
Officer of the Company. o
# Mr. Huang and Mr. Hu were appointed as executive 8 BHEERPEER-ZZS—NERA

directors of the Company on 1 May 2019.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, Mr. Lee
was resigned and Mr. Shih Chih-Hung was appointed
as the executive director of the Company on 1 April
2020.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

The directors’ remuneration shown above does not
include the estimated monetary value of the
Group’s owned premises provided rent-free to an
executive director, Mr. Chung, during the year. The
estimated rental value of such accommodation was
HK$116,000 (2019: HK$154,000) for the year ended
31 March 2020.

—HEZERARBHTES -

8 BEHRE RB-SHFMA—
B FEERETAQANTES
SRELENEZERRADRNT

E=x-

AEENTEEMEETHREREDE
BMEEMHE 22 H-

IR REEME AU RBEREN
MM TESELCERBERENASE
BEEVMEZGFBE - BEZE
“RF=BA=+—HIEFE ZF
B2 fh st HEA116,0008 T (ZF
—NE 154,000 7T) °



FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2019: three) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining two (2019: two)
non-director, highest paid employees for the year ended
31 March 2020 are set out below:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
B CEFFZ/A=+—H

haEaHmES

FN hARSHFHEEEE=2(ZF
—NF ZR)EF BREREFFMOF
BFEAELXHMESHKE RBEE-FZF
FZR=+—BHLEFER BHTWM&(Z
FT-NEFE MB)REMENFERRE
MEBEFEOT

2020 2019
LRIl ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER

Salaries, allowances and benefits in ¥ & R LEYMER

kind 4,723 4 585
Discretionary bonuses )15 78 4L 2,158 2,075
Pension scheme contributions BIREFTEIH R 650 631

7,531 7,291

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

MENFUTEENRSHFMIFEESER
EMEBWT :

Number of employees

ES & E

2020 2019
LRIl ==

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000% 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,0007 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T £3,000,0007% 7T - -

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 T £3,500,0007 7T 1 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 T £4,000,0007 7T - —
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 T £4,500,0007 7T 1 1

2 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2019: Nil).

EN AEEREQESHNEMNLLRS
FHMALXNMEFERAMAIMAKRE
ERNBEMIFERABEREECE—N
F )
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

10. INCOME TAX 10. A5

B9 B3 (HE)EH  0ILINNSONIAI0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) 3IIN 319V3

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for one
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime effective from the
year of assessment 2018/2019. The first HK$2,000,000
(2019: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this
subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% (2019: 8.25%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2019:
16.5%). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
being effective on 1 January 2008, the corporate income
tax rate for all enterprises in Mainland China is 25%.

Moreover, under the relevant tax laws and regulations in
Mainland China, a company may set off losses incurred
by it in a financial year against profits made by it in the
succeeding financial year or years, subject to a
maximum of five financial years.

In addition, Vietnam corporate tax has been provided at
the rate of 20% (2019: 20%) and the Indonesia
corporate tax has been provided at the rate of 25%
(2019: 25%) on the estimated assessable profits.

ERN - EETSRRESBELENMGETE
EREEF6.5% (ZF—HE 116.5%)
MEEEE  HAEE—RHKNBATAE
—EF-)N B -NEFTEFEERERZ
FERMEMBHNESERBTIRIRI - b
B A& 2,000,000 T (ZF—NE :
2,000,000/ 7T ) FERTREF1R8.25% (ZF
—NEFE :8.25%) MEHTR - MERTIERR
M AIR16.5% (ZF—LF :165%) 1
M - Hfthh S FERER B FMRIE - Al
RIBAEBEBFATERRNIRTHRETHE -

RER-_SFENE—BF—HEXRNPEH
EABSRE  PEKEEEENDE
IS E%H25% °

RBARNTERERBERAL  —K
REITHER—EMREEELEZEE
REARER—ERZEAMREEZ G
M ERZTAEERREAMBKEE -

o HEARRK20% (ZE—HE -
20% ) M EMEEE > MENE ARG
FERRRE A U25% (Z B —NF :125%)
MREIEEME -

2020 2019
= —_BEHF —E-NEF
= HK$'000 HK$'000
= F#T FET
% Current tax charge for the year: AEEFRBAREXSY :

S Hong Kong BB 15,609 17,138
= Elsewhere Hthith 5 50,257 25,512
,llﬁ" Underprovision/(overprovision) of BEFERERIEEE

xleﬁli current tax in respect of prior years &, (#8B%) 245 (200)
ﬁ Deferred (note 26) 1B FE (Fff 5£26) 2,208 2,077
& Total tax charge for the year AEEREXHER 68,319 44,527




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
B CEFFZ/A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FAiS @
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit BARMUANB RE XIS M B LS
before tax using the statutory rates for the tax ENREREZEEEEMETEZRRKR
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of AaEf 2 RMEX HERERRESEZ
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the MERX ZHRAOT

effective tax rate is as follows:

;

2

2020 2019 =

k- Jut- o5 —E-hE 2

HK$000 HK$'000 =

TET FET =

Profit before tax B 75 A & 7l 295,149 182,675 g

Tax at the applicable rates to profit in XGRS 5 A # & % F) §

the tax jurisdictions concerned BRAZREFEZRIE 64,976 37,560 2

Adjustments in respect of current tax FtIBEEEEERIEBEMEL =

of previous years B 245 (200) 2

Income not subject to tax BAERRZ A (1,615) (3,239) =

Expenses not deductible for tax AR ZER 3,269 2,596 S

Effect of withholding tax on the NBAEEZ FEHEBAA i

distributable profits of the Group's AkaflEilR e 2“«“

PRC subsidiaries 4,541 1,500

Temporary differences not RERGRKER s

recognised (3,589) — =

Tax loss not recognised RERRIEBE 492 6,310 g

Tax charge at the Group's effective RAKBERRETEZ E
rate MIE X H 68,319 44,527

020¢ 140d3d TVANNY
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Notes to Financial Stat emems (continued)

MEBEERRE(R)

31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

11. DIVIDENDS 1. K2
2020 2019
—EBEHF —_EB-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
o T#&ET FHBT
E Dividends paid during the year: FRNEMEER
= Final in respect of the financial year HE_Z—HE=R8
m ended 31 March 2019 — HK6 =t+—HLEMBRFEERE
= cents (2019: HK12 cents) per KB — SkEEKREEW
% ordinary share (ZEB—NAEF 128 31,920 59,962
§ Interim — HK20 cents (2019: HK14 FHKRE — KR ERKR
= cents) per ordinary share 208 (ZF—N%F
3 14784W) 106,400 69,955
= 138,320 129,917
cé Proposed final dividend: BIRARIRE -
= HK9 cents (2019: HK6 cents) per £ I8 RIB L
; ordinary share (ZE—NF 681l) 47,880 31,920
H
The proposed final dividend for the year is based on the KEEZRRARPAKREDEZENRARSH
B number of shares in issue as at the reporting date, and ERTZEMNBBERE  WEAGTAQEK
g is subject to the approval of the Company’s HREERRBFRAGHERTAES -
ot shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. ZEVBRBRRUBERREMKPERE -
E These financial statements do not reflect the final
i dividend payable.

0202 LHOd3d TYNNNY
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12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company for the year of HK$223,458,000 (2019:
HK$140,418,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 532,000,000 (2019: 505,790,000) in
issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019 as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during those years.

12.

FXREHEAEBEERAET

EREABMNIREBEANARALTET A
JE 1533 #1)223,458,0008 7T (Z B — I 4E
140,418,000 7T) - UMERFENEZRTEE
B&% =z N # SE 5 £4532,000,0008% (ZF— A,
£ :505,790,0000%) 51 & -

RBEE-_F_FER-_F-NF=A
=t+—HLEFE HEBEBEIEZE
BULER FUMESIHARERESR
B -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
B CEFFZ/A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ * iR B &% 1&

Furniture,

fixtures,

equipment
Leasehold Plant and and motor
Buildings  improvements machinery vehicles E
BE - m
BER  LE 2 =
gF HEYERE e RSE it m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 é
TERT TERT TER TERT TERT j%;
31 March 2020 —8-3£=H=+-H §
Cost: A E
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE=B=+—H 846,518 205,570 389,889 95,672 1,537,649 =
Effect of adoption of RNE SR BE S =
HKFRS 16 F1HNTE (59,058) - - - (59,058) =
At 1 April 2019 (restated) RZBE-NFEA—H %
(&3l 787,460 205,570 389,889 95,672 1,478,591 =
Additions AE - 51,034 26,007 15,048 92,089 =
Disposals HE - - (2,675) (4,730) (7,405) it
Write-off fif 55 - (8,937) (1,809) (393) (11,139)
Exchange realignment ERRE (43,559) (12,077) (17,807) (4,212) (77,655) 5
At 31 March 2020 RZZ-FF=A=+—H 743,901 235,590 393,605 101,385 1,474,481 %g
Accumulated depreciation: 2ENE E}
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-AF=ZF=+—H 198,860 123,431 222,225 68,865 613,381 g
Effect of adoption of EMEBRBREEA |
HKFRS 16 FIRNTE (21,261) - - - (21,261)
At 1 April 2019 (restated) RZBE-NFEA—H
(E50) 177,599 123,431 222,225 68,865 592,120
Provided during the year FRERE (K7
(note 7) 24,914 21,864 30,300 8,699 85,777 =
Disposals HE - - (216) (3,854) 4,070) §
Write-off s - (8,937) (1,347) (39) (10,323) -
Exchange realignment ERRE (10,142) (7,106) (9,619) (2,719) (29,586) g)
At 31 March 2020 RZBZFF=F=+—H 192,371 129,252 241,343 70,952 633,918 g
Net book value: BRENRE - -
At 31 March 2020 RZBZFEHF=F=+—H 551,530 106,338 152,262 30,433 840,563 ,I\%I(

BEEE—




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % - BB &% E @)

(continued)
Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold equipment

m land and Leasehold Plant and and motor

?, buildings improvements machinery vehicles Total

m RE-

‘% HELHK BER  HE &

m gF HEMEEE #e RRE st

g HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

o FTET FTET FET TBT FTERT

=

= 31 March 2019 —E-nE=RA=1+—H

= Cost: BA

E At 1 April 2018 RZF—/\FMB—H 763,971 172,460 318,957 81,860 1,337,248

z Acquisition of subsidiaries W A A (i EE29)

5 (note 29) 118,342 4,413 40,785 6,000 169,540

sz Additions AE — 38,302 46,693 11,353 96,348

% Disposals a5 — = (2,966) (329) (3,295)

= Exchange realignment ERAE (35,795) (9,605) (13,580) (3,212) (62,192)

@ At 31 March 2019 RZF-NE=ZBA=+—-H 846,518 205,570 389,889 95,672 1,537,649

5 Accumulated depreciation: RERE -

ik At 1 April 2018 RZE—/)\EFMBE—H 181,575 113,786 207,350 65,778 568,489

Provided during the year ENERE(HET7)

R (note 7) 25,994 16,080 24,642 5,905 72,621

= Disposals HE — = (1,664) (312) (1,976)

g Exchange realignment FER AR (8,709) (6,435) (8,103) (2,506) (25,753)

hiiy At 31 March 2019 RZF-NE=ZA=+—-H 198,860 123,431 222,225 68,865 613,381

";3 Net book value: BREHE -

o At 31 March 2019 RZS-AE=B=+-H 647,658 82,139 167,664 26,807 924,268
As at 31 March 2019, certain of the Group's buildings RIFB—NF=A=+—H  RBEEIRIT
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$61,884,000 HEREEURTREMERE  AEECIKE
were pledged for the banking facilities for issuing bills BRI (B 4961,884,000/8 Tt %= THEF -
payable.

0202 LHOd3d TYNNNY
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRKE(R)
31 March 2020
—E_EFF=Z/F=+—H

14. LEASES 14. HE

The Group as a lessee AEBEREBEA

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land AEBREEREE THELIHMA IR
and plant used in its operations. Lump sum payments EHENHEGW -HELHERE— R
were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the RAIXARHEANERES Lt - HEN
owners with lease periods of 30 to 60 years, and no F3I0E60F - RIBZFLHBEERR &
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of BAFEXINHEHMRE - THRHEESMNEE
these land leases. Leases of plant generally have lease NEIE6F - — kM s AEEBARITEAE
terms of 3 to 6 years. Generally, the Group is restricted EEMUMNTEERPHEBESE - E
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside —HEGNHBEEERE -

the Group. There is a lease contract that includes an
extension option.

278 B0 = (5 PEl) 22 8 QILINIT SONITT0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) JIIN 319V3

(a) Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 April (a) FAMTLHHEEHE—F—NF
2019) 5 —HEi)
HK$'000
THBT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2018 R _F—/\FHA—HZERHE 63,019
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) W B B B 2~ B (B3 5%29) 77,003
Amortisation recognised during the year TR PN e B 4 B
(note 7) (BFE5E7) (2,485)
Exchange realignment BE &2 3 & (3,320)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2019 AZE-AFE=ZB=+—HZE
H{E 134,217
Current portion included in prepayments, SAFEMSIA e R EAMEK
deposits and other receivables (note 15) FRIE Z ENEAEB 2 (BfF5E15) (3,947)
Non-current portion JERDHAER 2 130,270
z
As at 31 March 2019, certain of the Group's RIZBE—NWFE=ZBA=1+—H AW )%
prepaid land lease payments with a carrying BIBITTEREEURTENERE =
amount of HK$39,958,000 was pledged for the A& B E i 7 B [ {839,958,00078 =
banking facilities for issuing bills payable. THETEM LB ERIE - S

—&"

MbhbE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

14. LEASES (continued)

14. HE @

The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEREBAE
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) EHEZSE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use FRNAEEFRAEEENREER
assets and the movements during the year are as BEUT -
follows:
Prepaid land
lease
payments Plant Total
ALt
HEME IR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
At 1 April 2019 R-ZFB—NAFEMABE—H 172,014 22,065 194,079
Depreciation charge (note 7) &R X (MzE7) (6,332) (7,741) (14,073)
Exchange realignment B 53 A 2 (8,881) (606) (9,487)
At 31 March 2020 A_E_FEEFE=R
=t—H 156,801 13,718 170,519

One of the Group’s prepaid land lease payments
with a net carrying amount of HK$1,242,000 (2019:
HK$1,356,000), together with the buildings thereon,
has been provided as rent-free accommodation to
Mr. Chung, an executive director of the Company
during the year.

AEBEHRE-—EREBEE
1,242,000 T(Z F — N F
1,356,000 75) 2 FE f+ L #h 0 & &
B EREENEFRENEHEE
BBEE(RKQNFA—BATESR)N
BHETRE -



14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
B CEFFZ/A=+—H

14. HE @

FEEFEREBA

(c) HEEE
ENAEEHEAENREELRE

movements during the year are as follows: BT :
HK$'000
TET
Carrying amount at 1 April 2019 A _B—NEFEEBE—HZEHEE 22,065
Accretion of interest recognised during the — FERERMNEEH 2 (HF6)
year (note 6) 692
Payments T3 (8,117)
Exchange realignment BE &2 FA 2 611)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 A_BEBF=ZA=+—HZE
HH 14,029
Analysed into: TR
Current portion BVHA &R 2 7,605
Non-current portion JEENEA &R 92 6,424

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed

HEABEIHBEIMREBRERN

in note 36 to the financial statements. 36K E ©
(d) The amounts recognised in the consolidated income (d) Rt aREIREEAEGHENE
statement in relation to leases are as follows: BT -
2020
BB F
HK$°000
TET
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGANE 692
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FHRESENERX 14,073
Expense relating to short-term leases and EHEHEERFGHEBR S
other leases with remaining lease terms —EFE=-HA=+—HZ%ZEE
ended on or before 31 March 2020 M EMEERX
(included in cost of sales) (T ASHE R A) 297

Total amount recognised in the consolidated
income statement

TR & Wi R e BB R AR B8
15,062

278 B0 = (5 PEl) 22 8 QILINIT SONITT0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) JIIN 319V3
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

14. LEASES (continvea) 14. *ﬂ%(ﬁg)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEREBAE
(e) Extension option (e) HEHZEEE

The Group has a lease contract that includes an AEBEFP-HEGHHBFEHRE
- extension option. This option is negotiated by EE ZEEEHEEREDR &
2 management to provide flexibility in managing the EHEHEEEAAIRMERNE I
E leased-asset portfolio and it is aligned with the RREGAEENEBLTE - TXRHE
= Group’s business needs. Set out below is the FRFANEEHEHEREIZEET
= undiscounted potential future rental payments FHMNEHRBAREHREZBERRK
=
3 relating to periods following the exercise date of HEMK
5 the extension option that are not included in the
S lease terms:
=
B
=) —— —
S 2020 —EBEF
5
(92]
= Payable within
= five years
i AENER
i HK$'000
THBT
5B = o -
e Extension option expected not to be FEEAARITENERRERE
& exercised 19,860
at
i
3
pift
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
B CEFFZ/A=+—H

15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 15. AT FRIE « B R HE I
OTHER RECEIVABLES =]

2020 2019
b a3 2 —F-AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET THET

31 March 2020 and 2019 was assessed to be minimal.

m

=

(2]

m

Prepaid land lease payments AT HEENRE - 3,947 =
Prepayments TEFRIE 27,111 37,330 Lol
Deposits and other receivables B K H Ath & IR 64,185 90,509 5
o)

91,296 131,786 =

Less: Non-current portion of deposits & BEEYE  WMEX =
for purchases of items of HREEEN %
property, plant and JEENEAE iR E 2
equipment (13,768) (35,271) =

wn

Current portion BNER &R 2> 77,528 96,515 =
=

O

The financial assets included in the above balances STARM EERFIBEESRNNSRMEE - -
relate to receivables for which there was no recent I EAN SRR FREE Rk Rk B BA £ EE o E 0T E) s
history of default and past due amounts. Their MH2REBZANGEERRITEE MRZF
recoverability was assessed with reference to the credit —EFERZE-NAF=ZB=1+—HWE B
status of the debtors, and the loss allowance as at BEGELTHERBEM - g
af

i

B

|

16. GOODWILL 16. &
2020 2019
—_BEHF —E—hEF
HK$°000 HK$'000 %
T#&ET TET =
Cost and net carrying amount: A {E R BREFRE "CE;
At beginning of year REA) 100,334 26,112 3
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) W B B B 2~ B (M9 5E29) - 74,222 S
At end of year REXR 100,334 100,334 [l

&

BEEE—




Notes to Financial St atements (continued)

MEBEERRE(R)

31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. ﬁ%(g}

B9 B3 (HE)EH  0ILINNSONIAI0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) 3IIN 319V3

0202 LHOd3d TYNNNY

—&"

MhEE

Impairment testing of goodwiill

PRC CGU ONE

Goodwill of HK$26,112,000 (2019: HK$26,112,000),
arising from an acquisition during the vyear ended
31 March 2008, was allocated to a cash-generating unit
in Mainland China which is engaged in the manufacture
and trading of sportswear and garments (the “PRC CGU
ONE").

The PRC CGU ONE generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets.

The recoverable amount of the PRC CGU ONE has been
determined from the value in use, which is calculated
with reference to cash flow projections based on a
five-year period financial budget approved by senior
management. The financial budgets are prepared
reflecting actual and prior year performance and
development expectations. The key assumptions for the
cash flow projections are the budgeted gross margin
which is the average gross profit margin achieved in the
year immediately before budgeted years and the
discount rate of 18.5% (2019: 15.7%), which is pretax
and reflects specific risks relating to the PRC CGU ONE.
The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 3.0% (2019: 3.0%).
The directors believe that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the PRC CGU ONE to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since the
recoverable amount of the PRC CGU ONE is higher than
its carrying amount, the directors consider there was no
impairment of the goodwill at the end of the reporting
period.

e 2 iR B A

e 2 ELE i —
RBEE_ZFF/N\F=ZA=+—HILEFE
& 17 IR B8 P E 4 B9 7S 226,112,000 JT
(ZFE—HEF :26,112,0008TT) BERET
BEAEREESHREIRIREERES
2HREESXEN(YRARSELEM—
881 e

PRHREEABM—REENEZARAA
RELBINKEHMEENRERA -

PEHEREEABN—BR2AKEEETD
RBFERAEEEE MEAEEINREERA
ShEEEEMN s AFHMBEEMRE
HzREREFE  VWHBEEZHGENR
MER BEFEFEXRBERERZEE - B
HEeEREZTEREAFMEEZENE
(IR EEEEENZEEMERZFY
EFEMR)RIFTEFISLED (ZEFE—NF
15.7% ) (TR AT R RREFRIRESELE
BU—RERAZBEAR)  AFHMUE
HNIREREFEA%ZERER(ZE—H
E-smﬁﬁﬁ BEEMEE EAZER
RO HEAEMBIR 88 SAgEKF
HRSEALEMN—F 2 EREEBLHE
AN EI£%E - ARTPEREELEEM—E
ZANEEBESNEREE  EERAR
REHAHELELBRME -



16. GOODW' LL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Vietnam CGU

Goodwill of HK$36,075,000 (2019: HK$36,075,000),
arising from an acquisition as stated in note 29(a) during
the year ended 31 March 2019, was allocated to a
cash-generating unit in Vietnam which is engaged in the
manufacturing of sportswear (the “Vietnam CGU").

The Vietnam CGU generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets.

The recoverable amount of the Vietnam CGU has been
determined from the value in use, which is calculated
with reference to cash flow projections based on a
five-year period financial budget approved by senior
management. The financial budgets are prepared
reflecting actual and prior year performance and
development expectations. The key assumptions for the
cash flow projections are the budgeted gross margin
which is the average gross profit margin achieved in the
year immediately before budgeted years and the
discount rate of 15.4% (2019: 15.5%), which is pretax
and reflects specific risks relating to the Vietnam CGU.
The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 3.0% (2019: 3.0%).
The directors believe that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the Vietnam CGU to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since the
recoverable amount of the Vietnam CGU is higher than
its carrying amount, the directors consider there was no
impairment of the goodwill at the end of the reporting
period.

Notes to Financial Statements (cuminued)
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31 March 2020
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16. B @)

rERENR )

HEEEELEN
REBE_F-—NWE=B=+—HLEE
T (R 5E29()R BR) FRE AN E
#36,075,0008 T(Z & — h & :
36,075,000/ 7T) BB E S E R EEH R
gRErHeELEN((OEERESEL
BArl) e

HMEREELABEMNEENREERAKRE
TBIRBEMEEMNERERA -

BERSELEBEMNZKREEEHIRE
FREREE MERBEENREASR
EEEEMAFHMRBEERENZ
REeEMEE VWHBEEZRENRRE
BrBEFERERARERE BlRE
MEZTERBRBRAFMBEZEFNEEER
EEEFENZFEMERZEYEF
K) R IR K54%(Z F — h &
15.5% ) (Th BRI A0 M fz B €8 4l i 3R <8 22 4
BUBHAZEERR) - AFHMUENE
EREMFA0% (ZFE—HAFE 3.0%)2
WREHE - EEMEE  TEZE/RED

BEAIEMHIR 2 28 KA ERHWER
SEABMNZEREEB ST KOS
BE-HNHERSELEMZIKROIESEE
SRERAEE EERARREHATE
I £ H IR RE o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. ﬁ%(g}
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Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

PRC CGU TWO

Goodwill of HK$38,147,000 (2019: HK$38,147,000),
arising from an acquisition as stated in note 29(b) during
the year ended 31 March 2019, was allocated to a
cash-generating unit in Mainland China which is engaged
in the manufacture and trading of sportswear (the “PRC
CGU TWO").

The PRC CGU TWO generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets.

The recoverable amount of the PRC CGU TWO has been
determined from the value in use, which is calculated
with reference to cash flow projections based on a
five-year period financial budget approved by senior
management. The financial budgets are prepared
reflecting actual and prior year performance and
development expectations. The key assumptions for the
cash flow projections are the budgeted gross margin
which is the average gross profit margin achieved in the
year immediately before budgeted years and the
discount rate of 18.3% (2019: 16.1%), which is pretax
and reflects specific risks relating to the PRC CGU TWO.
The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 3.0% (2019: 3.0%).
The directors believe that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the PRC CGU TWO to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since the
recoverable amount of the PRC CGU TWO is higher than
its carrying amount, the directors consider there was no
impairment of the goodwill at the end of the reporting
period.

R RENR e

HhEE 2 ELE 5

RBE_ZF—AE=ZB=+—HILEE
AT IS (R EE29(0)sR B FRE £ E
238,147,000 Tw(Z & — h & :
38,147,000 70) B ERE KER FE
FRENEREE2RSEEEM([F
HRESEABEMTR]) -

FEREEABEM_FREENESRAN
RELBIRBEMEENRERA

PEHREEEAEMN Rz KEIE&ETD
RBERAEEEE  MEREERRER
SR EEEEMN 2 AFHMKBERRE
HZzRERENE  MREEZHGEDIR
MEREBEEERBERBHZE - B
HERneEzTEREAFMBEZENE
(R EEEEEMZEEMERZFEY
EMNR)RFBERISIU (ZB—NE
16.1% ) (T3 BRR AT Rk RBLEER IR & E L
BUNZHREERZEERR) - AEHMNE
HMESEREERW(ZE—hH &
3.0%) 2 REHE - EFHEE - EAZ
LRRAEAEMHIRZ %8 188
BhERSELBEMN S BREER
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B2 & &E
Customer
Backlog relationship Total
REREHE ZERRRE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 m
FBT FHT FHT 2
Cost at 1 April 2018 RZF—/)\EWEA—HBHH %
B AN — — _ =
Acquisition of subsidiaries &K B~ & (Ff5E29) =
(note 29) 2,838 16,926 19,764 %
Amortisation provided during £ P9 i 85 #2 # (B4 5E7) §
the year (note 7) (2,365) (682) (2,947) E
Net carrying amount at RZEB-—NAFE=ZR=+—H S
31 March 2019 and R-E—AENA—HK =
1 April 2019 BRI SHE 473 16,344 16,817 2
Amortisation provided during £ P9 85 #2485 (Y 3E7) =
the year (note 7) (473) (2,944) (3,417) S
Net carrying amount at RZIFEZFEF=A=+—H ?ﬁ
31 March 2020 fYBRE FHE — 13,400 13,400
5
I
18. INVENTORIES 18. 7 & =
i
B>
2020 2019 el

—BoBF —F-AEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET

Raw materials TR Rt 271,839 221,100 -
Work in progress TS 152,098 156,213 %
Finished goods B @ 146,176 124,588 =
s}

570,113 501,901 S

s
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19. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. EIRERsW R =i

B9 B3 (HE)EH  0ILINNSONIAI0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) 3IIN 319V3

2020 2019
LN —=as
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER

Accounts receivable & W BR 7R 240,068 403,624
Bills receivable FE I ZE 15 3,876 7,618
243,944 411,242

The Group's accounts and bills receivables mainly relate
to a few recognised and creditworthy customers. The
credit period is generally for a period of 30 to 90 days
(2019: 30 to 90 days). The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
the credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed
by the management of the Group. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
accounts and bills receivables balances. The accounts
and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing. At the end
of the reporting period, 61% (2019: 55%), 12% (2019:
15%) and 20% (2019: 14%) of the total accounts and
bills receivables were due from the Group’'s largest
customer, the second largest customer and the third
largest customer, respectively.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

AEBZEVERIZEBRFEHEE TR
AREERIFNEFER -E8H—K5
30KREOKR (ZE—HEFE :30KEX) °
AEER OB KRESEBRARERT
BEREE  SEERBEHNZERMEKFE -
BHAMZERBAAEEEEECHE
B AEBEURMEBERERREZBER
RAEMEMAIRE R EMMNREEREE - &
WERFR R ZIR AR BRI - RIEHRK -
FEBEBRARF FE_ARFRFE=ZKRE
B plh A& B FE R Uk ZH 425861 %
(ZE—NF 55%) 2% (ZF—Hh
F 15% ) R20% (ZEB—NE 14% ) °

RESHRZEBKRERRBZZAHD
REEDTAOT -

z
& 2020 2019
- It It & —E-AE
3 HK$'000 HK$'000
- F#RT F#T
= Within 30 days 30K W 173,291 284,442
5;& 31 to 60 days 31EB60K 22,11 46,630
L 61 to 90 days 61ZE90K 30,857 68,711
Over 90 days 0K B E 13,809 3,841

A
A/
N
&

240,068 403,624




19. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. No impairment allowance
has been provided as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 as
management consider that the expected credit losses
are not significant given the receivable balances are
related to customers for whom there are no recent
history of default and majority of the balances are not
yet past due.

The maturity of bills receivable as at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

19.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRKE(R)
31 March 2020
—E_EFF=Z/F=+—H

BWERFREE @

REHRES DR RAREEREETRE
2 UETERRAGEEERE - BEXRE
FREERRANREFFZANXE
FTE - ZFTERMRAARXMELER B
REAMBESARITSHNEREESEE
BRI R RREBERAERANEGE R
AEEE R o R FE R RS BR B 1T B 3 42
RACHNEFEBABERBDEERE R
BE - WEBERABHEERREABE
WM AR ZRERF-AEF=R
=+—HEEFRBREREE -

RESHRBREBHNIHABRAOT -

2020 2019
k- k- 3. “E—hEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 3 months MR M 1,777 —
3 to 6 months 3ZE6{E A 2,099 7,618
3,876 7,618

The bills receivable are not yet past due and there was
no recent history of default and the loss allowance as at
31 March 2020 and 2019 was assessed to be minimal.

W R iz i RoEHE - BT Bt S R SR AT
% —F_BER_F-NAFE=ZRA=1+—
HE B E S R B -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

20. PLEDGED DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED

BANK BALANCE, TIME DEPOSIT AND

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

20 BEFER BRERTLE
ﬁﬂ; N ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ&ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ

2019
—EB-AE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Cash and bank balances R&RIBTHEER 265,051 209,623
Non-pledged time deposit with REEREREIHBERABRE=
original maturity of less than three BB MWERTETEHER
months when acquired 32,874 =
Non-pledged time deposit with RESREINFEHZR=@
original maturity of more than three  BRERBPEHER
months when acquired 43,778 —
Less: Restricted bank balance for B ORPEAREEOREN
import purchases in = BR&I IR 1T 4 B8R
Mainland China (547) (585)
Less: Pledged deposits for banking &l - AIESHREITHBEEE L
facilities for issuing BHTEMNEBNE
bills payable HIREFER - (15,204)
Total cash and bank balances ReRkiBITHERER 341,156 193,834

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to HK$281,337,000 (2019:
HK$150,054,000). RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies. However, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and six
months (2019: between one day and three months)
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances, pledged deposits
and restricted bank balance are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

RBERR  AEBUARE(ARK])
sHEM IR £ & iR 17 4% 8% 2281,337,0007%&
TT(ZF— A& :150,054,0005 75) = A
EMASERRRAEME - AMIRE
PR B K S A A BE B FRAR 1) L B 45 BE - S BE
ENEEERTE AEEENEZBER
EREBENNEEEZRITHEARERIBRA
Hih &g -

FRETHREREBARTERNEXZ
FE}EXRRDMNE AEERIBREE
FEFE-—HENER(ZF—NEF -
—BE=ZBR)NEHEHREFR Lo 5
A E B SR R ERENA B - SRAT A
& - BIRRERRZREIRITERIDER
REGEBHEHRRRLTHKZIRT -



21.

22.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the accounts and bills payables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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21. BRI R EE

REEHRZEMRRAREBRBEER
HHMRE AT

2020 2019

—_EBEHF —E-NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#&ET FHET

Within 90 days 90K KN 198,075 237,916
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 31,051 519
181 to 365 days 181E365K 1,839 19,084
Over 365 days 365K X £ 5,891 650
236,856 258,169

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 45-day terms.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s banking facilities were
supported by the corporate guarantees of
HK$741,500,000 (2019: HK$685,300,000) executed by the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 March 2020, an aggregate amount of the
Group’s banking facilities of HK$530,800,000 (31 March
2019: HK$572,155,000) was utilised.

BNERREBERF GEH KA
45K o

22. tRITIERIEE
RIB-_FHE=A=+—8  KXEEMIR
TERBEUARARANGBETHEB
N 8 E A B ¥ {£741,500,0008 T (Z &
— 4 :685,300,0005& T5) °

RIB-_ZEHE=A=+—H0 FAE£ENIR
TERFEEE 8 FH & $£530,800,0005& T
(ZE—hFE=ZH=+—H :572,155,000
BIT) °

278 B0 = (5 PEl) 22 8 QILINIT SONITT0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) JIIN 319V3

020¢ 140d3d TVANNY

—&"

MbhbE




B9 B3 (HE)EH  0ILINNSONIAI0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) 3IIN 319V3

0202 LHOd3d TYNNNY

&

A
A/
N
&
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MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

23.

24.

ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER
PAYABLES

23. Bt EREMEMRIE

2020 2019

—_B_BF —E-NE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHBTT

Other payables HMEMRIE 59,609 66,236
Accruals fEst & A 107,402 121,353
167,011 187,589

Other payables of the Group as at 31 March 2020
included a subsidy of HK$1,734,000 (2019:
HK$2,043,000) received from the People's Government
of Yifeng County, Jiangxi Province, the PRC for the
construction cost of basic infrastructure by the Group for
the development of the investment project in Jiangxi (the
“Jiangxi Project”). During the year, an amount of
HK$309,000 (2019: HK$210,000) was utilised and has
been offset against the construction cost.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK

AEER-_F_FF=A=+—HHEH
HEMHRESERFETIAEEEHA
R B AT B W BX1,734,0008 T (ZF — S
£ 2,043,000 T) B (FEAEAEH
HETARIREER (IRER ) WEARE
REBERAK - FWN - E B F309,000% T
(ZF|— A5 210,000 75) W LEFE K
ALY o

24. ;1B HRITER

BORROWINGS
2020 2019
—ESE miiyk:d
Effective HK$'000 HK$'000
interest rate BRA=x Maturity BN FET FET
Current BN A
Bank loans  SRITE 1.48% t0 2.60% 1.48%ZE2.60% On demand [EEX 530,800 572,155
(2019: 2.04% (ZB—h#%F
to 3.28%) 2.04%%F
3.28%)
As at 31 March 2020, bank borrowings of RIBZZFFE=H=+—H ' 412,000,000

HK$412,000,000 (2019: HK$442,550,000) were supported
by corporate guarantees executed by the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 March 2020, HK$93,000,000 (2019:
HK$127,955,000) of the bank borrowings were
denominated in US$.

BT (ZE—HE 442,550,000 75) HI R
TERERANBRANDETHEA TR
MM NEIERESZRF-

RIBZFEF=ZA=+—H RITEEH
93,000,000 7T (ZF— L4 127,955,000
BT UETTEHE-



24.

25.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROW'NGS (continued)

Based on the maturity terms of the bank borrowings, the
amounts repayable in respect of the bank borrowings are
analysed as follows:

24.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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FEETER®

DR
—FRREEXK

Analysed into:
Within one year and on demand

RIBRTERZ BRI - BITEREHEE
SEAFMT
2020 2019
LI -—=-as
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FER
530,800 572,155

PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION

The Group provides benefits for its employees of its
subsidiary in Indonesia who achieve the retirement age
of 57 years (2019: 57 years) based on the provisions of
the Indonesian Labour Law Number 13/2003 and
Collective Labour Agreement 2019-2021, through an
unfunded pension plan.

The plan is exposed to salary increase risk, interest rate
risk and the risk of changes in life expectancy.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value
of the defined benefit obligations were carried out at
31 March 2020 by Biro Pusat Aktuaria, an independent
actuary with a licence from the Indonesia Ministry of
Finance, using the projected unit credit method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

25.

B IR E 5t 8l & E

AEBEEREE LY T A513/20035% R E
REEEEAR2019-2021 @ @i E 43K
BIRETEIAZERS7R (ZF—NFE 575%)
BARERNVEERB AR EEREET -

ZHEEEFS LARR  AZEBRRE
AEORBERE -

EERNETHEBEZRMBEGESN
JE B BB 58 0] 48 3L #8 B A B Biro  Pusat
Aktuariait BRI BALE EBEMEER
TEFEE-H=1+—HEE-

RESHRARBZEEZERERKAOT ¢

THRE(%)
B HFZERE(%)

Discount rate (%)
Expected rate of salary increase (%)

2020 2019
LYY —=-nx
5.33-8.66 8.81
7.0 7.0
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25. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION 25. BIR 5t 8 &E @)
(continued)
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant RBPEHEER  EABBRZEEBEREDIT
assumptions as at the end of the reporting period is FIRAMT

shown below:

m
?.-:: Increase/ Increase/
= (decrease) (decrease)
& in net in net
= defined defined
% Increase benefit Decrease benefit
= in rate  obligation in rate  obligation
= EEEF EEEF
= HIERE HIERE
5 wm, wm
é b= E# (R 2) LEE TR (R 2)
% % HK$'000 % HK$'000
E THT THT
- 2020 ZEIEH
i Discount rate IR =R 1 (2,960) 1 3,736
Future salary increase KRR HF &1 h0 1 3,763 1 (3,026)
;g 2019 —EB-hF
&8 Discount rate IR = 1 (2,564) 1 3,249
g Future salary increase RIRF &0 1 3,277 1 (2,624)
B>
el
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined FRBBREINTDIRBEEEZHEBRERR
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on net REHEEHRE R EEH N TIERF
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable MEERFEZHEZALMETE - HRE
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the PMBEREFEHEMBREAENER
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based on a TH—EER RN EMET - HRE
change in a significant assumption, keeping all other NMADRTEEBINEENERROE
assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not FAZERENKNEBELTERELE -

be representative of an actual change in the defined
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

0202 LHOd3d TYNNNY
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(continued)

The total expenses recognised

25. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION

in the consolidated

income statement in respect of the plan are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
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25. BIKESTEIAE @

MZAENGERERERZHAIBER
LI

2020 2019
—_E_EHF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&ET FET
Current service cost RERBRA 3,995 3,807
Past service cost 18 & IR 75 B AR - 211
Interest cost F B A A 1,263 1,026
Net benefit expenses B R E 5,258 5,044
Recognised in cost of sales RiHE AR 4,356 4,291
Recognised in administrative KT X R
expenses 902 753
5,258 5,044
The movements in the present value of the defined EEENSTEREEESHUNT
benefit obligation are as follows:
2020 2019
—_E_EHF —E-AEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#&T TET
At beginning of reporting period RS 14,321 13,951
Current service cost RERBE A 3,995 3,807
Past service cost 1B A R A - 211
Interest cost B RA 1,263 1,026
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEEE (W) 114 (4,067)
Benefits paid B & #l (176) (156)
Exchange differences E R ER (2,649) (451)
At end of reporting period RBEER 16,868 14,321
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MBEHRRME(E)

31 March 2020

TR CEFFZH=+—H

25. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION

25. BIKESTEIAE »

(continued)
The movements in the defined benefit obligation are as EEEINSTZELEBUOT -
follows:
2020 —EBIEHE
Pension cost charged to the income statement Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other comprehensive income
REBRNBZERERE Hih2ElE 2 EHHE (W) FR
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial
changes changes changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from  arising from arising from included  Exchange
included in changes in changes in  changes in in other differences
1 April Service Net the income Benefits  demographic financial experience comprehensive on a foreign 31 March
2019 cost interest  statement paid  assumptions  assumptions adjustments income plan 2020
R HBERR ER¥EER
FARER AOBREHE 2HELr LHELE HARMEE SAHEN
BERE  HSER 2hit  BHEN EREZD RHEED NERED Bzt ERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TERT TER TER TET TET TET
Defined benefit obligation EEEAEL 14,321 3,995 1,263 5,258 (176) (77 530 (339) 14 (2,649) 16,868
2019 —B—-hE
Pension cost charged to the income statement Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other comprehensive income
REBRNBZERERE At eERE 2 EN:E(KE)/BE
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial
changes changes changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from  arising from  arising from included  Exchange
included in changes in changes in  changes in in other differences
1 April Service Net  the income Benefits  demographic financial  experience  comprehensive on a foreign 31 March
2018 cost interest  statement paid  assumptions  assumptions adjustments income plan 2019
R
IS HBERRZ LREE ZB-nF
5-)0\E FARER ADBREBE  #BELr LHEL FAEfE  BHFEG =
MA-H  B#AEx  HEFE Zhit  ENER AZREED BELEH MEEED EKEZ0G  EREE =1-8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TET TER TER TEL TEL TEL
Defined benefit obligation EEEAEE 13,951 4,018 1,026 5,044 (156) 1.411) (3,654) 998 (4,067) (451) 14,321




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
B CEFFZ/A=+—H

25. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION 25. BIAETEIEE @

(continued)
FEEEREZATFEZEZENTT -

The major categories of the fair value of the total plan
assets are as follows:

2020 2019

—_BEHF —_FB-NE

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#&ET FET

Equity instruments BEATHR N/A REHA N/A 73 F
Debt instruments BHITE N/A REH N/A & F
Property L/ES N/A FEH N/A A& F

ARBEZEBRBNEEREBERER

Expected contributions to be made in the future years

278 B0 = (5 PEl) 22 8 QILINIT SONITT0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) JIIN 319V3

out of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: W
2020 2019
- e 3.2 3 —_EB-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#&ET THET
Within the next 12 months RIR1218 B ™ 118 —
Between 1 and 2 years 1224 219 —
Between 2 and 5 years 2EbE 857 63
Between 5 and 10 years 5E 104 4,052 1,043
Over 10 years 10 £ 876,747 1,311,571
Total expected payments TEHAT RAEER 881,993 1,312,677

EERIASEEINRBEHRNTEHFER
RS A24 528 (ZFE—HE :20.29%F) -

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period is 24.52 years (2019:
20.29 years).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

26. DEFERRED TAX 26. IEEMRIA
The movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax AEBRFEFNNELEREEERELER
liabilities of the Group during the year are as follows: EaEZeSHWT -
Deferred tax asset EERIEEE
=
r."'-’" Losses available
2 for offsetting
] against future
= taxable profits
g T A LU 84
= KRR EF
fz: HNiEE
= HK$'000
S T
o
é At 1 April 2018 AZEF—/)\FMA—H 1,695
= Deferred tax charged to the consolidated income ERELAEKZRIT AN
= statement during the year (note 10) EERIE (FYEE10) (1,582)
° Exchange realignment CE AR B (113)
ﬁ At 31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 and RZIF-—NAE=A=+—H"
31 March 2020 “E-NEMBE-HX
B —E-S£=A=+—H —
o
g
§ Deferred tax liabilities EEREAE G
]
Withholding
taxes on
Accelerated undistributed
tax Asset profits of PRC
= depreciation revaluation Others subsidiaries Total
= hEHEAT
= ERIE ROV
& & BEEf Ht Z MR st
:_%' HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
S FHT FHT THET FHT FHT
[OI At 1 April 2018 RIE-/\EMA—H 574 9,833 — 4,909 15,316
1 Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the — FRERAKER
*[%Il consolidated income statement SN/ (0B KEERE
ﬁ during the year (note 10) (BtzE10) = (268) (737) 1,500 495
# Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) KB A A (i eF29) = 21,441 4,061 = 25,502
Withholding tax on repatriation of F B Y 2 ) B L R B RO
earnings from subsidiaries SR
in the PRC — — - (1,465) (1,465)
Exchange realignment ERRE = (413) = = (413)

At 31 March 2019 RZZB-NE=ZR=+—-H 574 30,593 3,324 4,944 39,435




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
B CEFFZ/A=+—H

26. IEXEMRIE @)
EEREERE®

26. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Withholding

taxes on

Accelerated undistributed
profits of PRC
depreciation revaluation Others subsidiaries

tax Asset

HEHE AR

MEHRE 9 A
ik BEEf Hith ZEMH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TER TER TERT

At 1 April 2019 RZB-NEMA—H 574 30,593 3,324 4,944 39,435

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the ~ ENERERFEER
N/ (N KBTI E

consolidated income statement

during the year (note 10) (Bt3E10) (79) (1,400) (854) 4,541 2,208
Withholding tax on repatriation of o B Y 2 7D B L R B RO

eamings from subsidiaries R

in the PRC - - - (553) (553)
Exchange realignment BRI - (1,910 - - (1,910)
At 31 March 2020 RZFEZFF=A=+—H 495 27,283 2,470 8,932 39,180

Pursuant to the PRC Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings accrued after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Company’s subsidiaries, the applicable rates are 5% or
10% (2019: 5%). In estimating the withholding taxes on
dividends expected to be distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors
have made an assessment based on the factors which
included the dividend policy and the level of capital and
working capital required for the Group’s operations in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$103,218,000 (2019: HK$60,176,000).

RIBPERE - RAPEKERIL 2 ER
BhEMIEREESTIRZIEERHEE
K10%FEINK - ZEER_FF/\E—HA
—BER LERR_BEBELtE+-A1
=+—HBEEZREFA - 144 FE AR
AR EE 2 AEET I RBEHRL - Bl
BREEEAEIRRE - AQBENHBA
Bl ERAMEA%HI0% (ZEBE—NE
5% ) o TEd 5T 5% & 0 Bl oK B 5 5L BT B
AM_EFNE—B—HEBEEENEF
FEHREREFAMNELRE  E5E2
FEEERERRAENRRRAEER
EEMMEEAREEESKEERE - &k
ERELEREEGENPFEKXENREBA A
CHENERUEEZEBRBAEAN
103,218,000 (= & — Hh #F :
60,176,0003 T ) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

26. DEFERRED TAX (continved) 26. EERIH @)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued) BEEREAEEE)
As at 31 March 2020, the Group has estimated tax RIBIEF=F=+—H A&EBEMFE
losses arising in Mainland China of HK$9,643,000 (2019: AR B K B E & 2 #7115 K5 18 439,643,000
HK$11,414,000) that will expire in five years for BIL(ZE—NF 11,414,000 7T) ' &
- offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax REFWNES AERHEHREZRRE
E assets have not been recognised during the year in fl - HRESRATHEEE CEHNEZRER
Z respect of losses of HK$9,643,000 (2019: HEARE A ANREEE  FIUZEN
m HK$11,414,000) as the directors consider that it is A f& $£9,643,0008 (= F — N &F
= uncertain whether sufficient taxable profits will be 11,414,000 7T) WE BEREZERIEE
% available against which the tax losses can be utilised. E o
JCZ>)
= 27. ISSUED CAPITAL 27. BERITRAE
=
& 2020 2019
% k- Jank- 3.3 —F-NF
= HK$'000 HK$'000
! TERT FET
Authorised: EERA :
R 10,000,000,000 (2019: 10,000,000,000) 10,000,000,0008%
s ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (ZF—h#& :
E 10,000,000,0008%)
= BREFIOBTZEZER 100,000 100,000
E Issued and fully paid: ERTRER :
532,000,000 (2019: 532,000,000) 532,000,000f%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (ZF—NF :
532,000,0008%)
BREEBITZEER 5,320 5,320

0202 LHOd3d TYNNNY
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27. ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued

capital is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
B CEFFZ/A=+—H

27. ER1TIRE @
ANFERITRANSEEANT -

Number of
ordinary
shares in Issued Share
issue capital premium Total
B81T
EEKRHEBE BRITER By E B mst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT THT
At 1 April 2018 AZE—)\F
MA—H 499,680,000 4,997 472,586 477,583
Issue of shares (Note) TR (B &E) 32,320,000 323 93,728 94,051
At 31 March 2019, A TE—NEF
1 April 2019 and SHIER I -
31 March 2020 —E—-NEF
MA—HKR
—BIEHE
=A=+—H 532,000,000 5,320 566,314 571,634
Note: fezE -

On 22 January 2019, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in
Prospect Converge Limited. Part of the consideration was settled by
way of the issuance of 32,320,000 ordinary shares at HK$2.91 per
share, being the closing share price of the Company on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 22 January 2019. The details of
the acquisition are set out in note 29(b) to the financial statements.

RIB—NFE—BZ+H ' A&EEKEProspect
Converge Limited 100% Bz 1 - T R EEBEEEIT
32,320,000 F k2. 91T (AR BRZF—HN
F—BZ+HREBHERIMERLANK
HRHE) 2 EEBREMN -  WIBFEBEHRRUBRSE
Bt 5£29(b) -

278 B0 = (5 PEl) 22 8 QILINIT SONITT0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) JIIN 319V3
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

28.

29.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate of the nominal value
of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company pursuant to a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) in August 2003, and the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefor and the existing 1,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each credited as fully paid, at par.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations,
subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to
transfer a certain portion of their profits after tax, as
determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to the
statutory surplus reserve, until the balance of the
reserve reaches 50% of their respective registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus reserve
may be used to offset against accumulated losses.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(@) During the year ended 31 March 2019, on 1 June
2018, the Group acquired 100% equity interests in
Year Fortune Group Limited and Faithful Year
Investments Limited (formerly known as Faith Year
Investments Limited) and their respective branch
and subsidiaries (collectively the “Vietnam Group”)
from Pro Kingtex Industrial Company Limited (“Pro
Kingtex"”), an indirectly non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of Yue Yuen Industrial (Holdings) Limited
("Yue Yuen"), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, for an aggregate consideration of
US$31,618,000 (equivalent to HK$248,201,000). The
Vietnam Group is engaged in the manufacture of
sportswear. The acquisition was to further expand
the Group’s production capacity outside of
Mainland China and to build up the production
capacity to cater for market growth.

28. &

29.

FEERFEERBEFEZFESR
REBBFBERUBRRPZEGED
BERZET -

FEEERFEREEARIRBE-ST=
FN\RzEEER(EAQDFBERBL
BAINERAEERRE ERETZARA
IR A EE K& 3R A 1,000,000% 5 R EE0.01
BTREEANRIFHBERNDEZESE -

REEETERL - EREFMONEL
BAARE THMONRREEN (RHEE
RARPIEE) BREATERGERE EE
ZRENEREIESBEMELRL0% -
EEBTERGMEETRIBRT - &
EEBHEETREREZRESGE-

KBS

(@) BEZIE—HAF=A=+—HIHF
ERN - RIF—/)\FRE—H &%
BrRAAR—REERERITILE
(EBE)BRLaE (M) zB#EIE
2 &M B/ S Pro Kingtex Industrial
Company Limited ([Pro Kingtex])
W B&VYear Fortune Group Limited %
Faithful Year Investments Limited
(A1 #&Faith Year Investments
Limited) » MREZBR DA B K
BB (FHEWEEE]) ’100% i
- #BAR{ER31,618000FE T (HE
1R2248,201,000%87T) - HrEEEKE
SEEER -  WEETEE—TERX
SERFPEKREUIIZERE - UK
FEREDEMIHZER -



29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRKE(R)
31 March 2020
—E_EFF=Z/F=+—H

29. ¥ A H@

(continued) (a) (#&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and RIEBE SEEEMNTH#RE
liabilities of the Vietnam Group as at the date of EXBEZLAFEWOT
acquisition were as follows:
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
e B8 R R SR 1Y
AFE
Notes HK$'000
Fid &% THBT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NKRE 13 9,278
Intangible asset BREEE 17 2,838
Inventories 7E 72,374
Accounts receivable & IS BR 3R 16,961
Prepayments, deposits and other FEMRIE  RERkHM
receivables F& IR IE 100,808
Cash and bank balances HE RIRITHER 53,914
Accounts payable F& £ BR 3R (13,059)
Accrued liabilities and other payables [Est & E R EH i & FUA (25,253)
Tax payable & (T #3118 (4,748)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIE & E 26 (987)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value FI# B REENFEESE 212,126
Goodwill on acquisition KWEEEZEHE 16 36,075
248,201
Satisfied by: UTHAFRAZA -
Cash consideration ReRE 165,419
Novation and set-off of amounts due BRI E W EEEE
from the vendor of the Vietnam BEAZeH
Group 82,782
248,201

Both the fair value and gross contractual amounts
of accounts receivable and other receivables as at
the date of acquisition amounted to HK$16,961,000
and HK$9,299,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of
HK$1,671,000 for this acquisition. These
transaction costs had been expensed and were
included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

T R Bl 0 e L fth PR WO RR IR B WK BB B
HOAFERBENEEDNR
16,961,000 JT %9,299,000% JT °

AEERGERBEENR S BRA
#1,671,0008TT - BRARZHAE
£ B TN AR S IS R R 1T BB
X—1g-
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 29. ¥ #Hw

(a)  (continued) (a) (%)
None of the goodwill recognised was expected to EHRMECERTETBRORARA
be deductible for income tax purposes. B/

EFRARBUEEEZRERENT

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the

0202 LHOd3d TYNNNY

—&_

MhEE

(b)

consolidated profit of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2019 would have been HK$2,612,667,000
and HK$141,439,000, respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, on
22 January 2019, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in Prospect Converge Limited from an
independent third party for an aggregate
consideration of RMB197,788,000 (equivalent to
HK$224,242,000). Prospect Converge Limited and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Hubei Group”) are
engaged in the manufacture and trading of
sportswear. The acquisition was to enhance the
production capability of the Group and broaden the
Group's customer base.

(b)

m

?.-:: acquisition of the Vietnam Group was as follows: wE

=

S HK$'000
= TET
% Cash consideration HEKE (165,419)
g; Cash and bank balances acquired B2 IRE KIBITHAR 53,914
= Net outflow of cash and bank balances included in 3t ARBEREFEFHZRER

= cash flows from investing activities EMNRERBITERTD

= ] (111,505)
2 Transaction costs of the acquisition included in FIAREEBREAZIRERN

= cash flows from operating activities ENKBEERIHRAE (1,671)
] (113,176)
i

H

Since the acquisition, the Vietnam Group BERERE UEEER8EZF
B2 contributed HK$245,933,000 to the Group's revenue —NE=ZB=+—HIEFEERAX
g and loss of HK$3,205,000 to the consolidated profit £ B & % L N\245,933,00058 7T * L
of of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019. kRAE B4R E & T 523,205,000
";ﬁ; Had the combination taken place at the beginning BUEBE - WMEHREDEE R
ift of that year, the revenue of the Group and the BE_ZE—NEFE=A=+—HB1L

FE FEENEXBRAREE
(TR = D S LI N Nl R
2,612,667,0007% 7T K& 141,439,000
BT

BE_ZS—-NE=ZRBA=1+—HLEEE
N RIF-—NAF—BZ+IZH &
S BM— & B E = 7 K HEProspect
Converge Limited#J100% A% & « 424X
& % A R #197,788,0007T (18 & R
224,242,000 7T) ° Prospect Converge
Limited & E ft B & (A5 B[ b &
BRENEREEEER - WES
ERARNEEER  UREBERAIEEH
HRFER -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 29. ¥ B #Hw

(b)  (continued) b) (#&)
The Group has elected to measure the AEEEREMNEERBEEDL
non-controlling interests in the Hubei Group at the PlstEMtEEFERRRERE
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the ML EEA R REEE #Y
Hubei Group's identifiable net assets excluding the BBk URBEMLHHE

- : : ERERERN - FEBREEEDS =
Igams on property, plant and equment. ano.l prepaid B34 1 B 8 T L B 4 548 B - E
and lease payments. The non-controlling interests H80% 1 2% HProspect C =

. . I H80% pect Converge
relate to Hubei Dongneng and its subsidiaries, Limited & o E
which are 80%-owned subsidiaries of Prospect =
Converge Limited. =
=
The fair values of the identifiable assets and RKERE  BItEENAHRE J%)
liabilities of the Hubei Group as at the date of EREBBEZAFEAOT : =
acquisition were as follows: g
5
Fair value =
recognised on %
acquisition =
e B2 RS FE SR 1Y =
AFE
Notes HK$'000 =
Fit 2% FHET I
Property, plant and equipment ME BEKRZE 13 160,262 ?;Sr
Prepaid land lease payments AN i EERIE 14(a) 77,003 il
Intangible asset BREEE 17 16,926 E
Inventories 7E 84,612
Accounts and bills receivables R BRI KR Ei& 136,668
Prepayments, deposits and other FAMRIE  REeEREM

receivables & W kI8 11,658
Pledged deposits EiREER 9,263 -~
Cash and bank balances R& & IRITHER 51,410 =
Accounts and bills payables R KR ER (156,440) =
Accrued liabilities and other payables FE&t & & & E fih FE {4 A (74,575) g
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITER (78,740) 3
Tax payable FE iR 18 (4,684) §
Deferred tax liabilities EEREBEEE 26 (24,515) N
Total identifiable net assets at fair value R BIREE N F{ELEZE 208,848 ‘fﬂl‘
Non-controlling interests EEEEEER (22,753) b
Goodwill on acquisition KEBELEZHE 16 38,147 ﬁ

224,242

Satisfied by: UTHAXZMA
Issue of shares BTN 27 94,051
Cash consideration ReRE 130,191

224,242
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Both the fair value and gross contractual amounts
of the accounts and bills receivables and other
receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted
to HK$136,668,000 and HK$975,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of
HK$1,969,000 for this acquisition. These
transaction costs had been expensed and were
included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

None of the goodwill recognised was expected to
be deductible for income tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the

29. ¥ #Hw
b) (&)
FE IS BR 3% e ZE 98 K ELth FE IERIE 1Y
KWEHIHNATFEIMENESE D
Al %136,668,00058 JT &% 975,0005&
775 o

AEERHERBEENRZHRA
751,969,000 T - BERARZHAE
B2 P ET NGRS W E R TR
X—IE -

T8 £ 0L 4 £ B R 7 5 P S B
/-

ERBBENILEEZRERED T

acquisition of the Hubei Group was as follows: W

HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration HEXKE (130,191)
Cash and bank balances acquired EREZRERIBTHER 51,410

Net outflow of cash and bank balances included in st ARBEEZTH ZRERN

cash flows from investing activities EMNRERIBITHERTL
TREE (78,781)

Transaction costs of the acquisition included in FIAREEBREAZIHRER
cash flows from operating activities ENKEBEERZHA (1,969)
(80,750)

Since the acquisition, the Hubei Group contributed
HK$114,708,000 to the Group's revenue and loss of
HK$10,027,000 to the consolidated profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2019. Had the
combination taken place at the beginning of that
year, the revenue of the Group and the profit of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
would have been HK$2,819,873,000 and
HK$160,695,000, respectively.

HRERRL HtEFREE-F
—NE=ZB=+—HIEFETRAX
EBEE XK AN114,708,0008TC * &
KE B4R & F #2810,027,000%
TTEE -HMEHFRENEE  RE
E_F-NE=ZRA=+—HL%E
B AEBRE XA RANEB R
# # 4 Bl £2,819,873,000% Tt K
160,695,0003% TG °



30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(i)

(ii)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2019,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables of
HK$82,782,000 were set off against the
consideration of acquisition of the Vietnam Group.

30. &2 &

(i)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEBRWE(R)

31 March 2020
B CEFFZ/A=+—H

BEERERME

FEFRERS
BE_F-NF=A=+—HL#HF
ER BARE R kHMEK
X 1E82,782,0005% 7T £ I B8 i Fa &
ERAERE -

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (i) MEEFHELENEBEES
activities
Interest-
Lease bearing bank
liabilities borrowings
HEEHE HERITER
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
At 1 April 2018 RZF-N\EMA—H = 196,800
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29(b)) WEE B B A (M EE29(b)) — 78,740
Changes from financing cash flows BMERERELE = 296,615
At 31 March 2019 RZZB-NE=R=+—-H = 572,155
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 EmEBMBEREEL
F6RENTE 22,065 —
At 1 April 2019 (restated) RIE-AFENA—H(EEF) 22,065 572,155
Changes from financing cash flows MERERELH (7,425) (41,355)
Interest expenses SRS 692 =
Interest paid classified as operating cash ~ NEAKEREREN
flows EMAFE (692) —
Exchange realignment BE 52 2 (611) —
At 31 March 2020 RZF_BHF=A=+—-H 14,029 530,800
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period (2019: Nil).

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 30. MEHRERERMT @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(continued)
(iii) Total cash outflow for leases (iii) AERERNHEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the FARERERNEERESRHE
z statement of cash flows is as follows: BT -
=
% 2020
= —E-EfH
= HK$'000
X [—
E T#ET
%’ Within operating activities R EEE W 989
= Within financing activities RELESEE N 7,425
g At 31 March 2020 —®-®E=g=+—0 8,414
5
(92]
= ‘
= 31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. HAERE
= The Group did not have any significant contingent RIBPEIER  AEEW B EMERIBEEZ
b liabilities not provided for at the end of the reporting BEXIAREBR(ZE—NEF 8-
]
g As at 31 March 2020, corporate guarantees to banks to RIBZFFE=ZRF=+—H ' ARTEAX
o the extent of HK$741,500,000 (2019: HK$685,300,000) NE)E T B2 F] A RIT I #£741,500,000
‘g were given by the Company and certain subsidiaries of BT (ZE—N5F :685,300,00087T) A&
j the Company for banking facilities granted to the ER UESEFAQBRANEETH
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company, which BABIMIRITHEREE  EPRESHR
were utilised to the extent of approximately E & A 49412,000,0008 T (ZF—NF
HK$412,000,000 (2019: HK$442,550,000) at the end of 442,550,00078 75) °

the reporting period.
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32. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

The Group had the following capital commitments
at the end of the reporting period:

(a)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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32. &I
REBRREHERZERKENT -

2020 2019
—BEHF —EB-AE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Contracted, but not provided for: BiJ4IERE®FE -
Renovation of factories and I EE R E & -
purchases of items of EERRKREEE
machinery and equipment for
the Hubei Group 154 12,208
Renovation of factories and RHUBEEEREER -
purchases of items of EEKBRBREER
machinery and equipment for
the Vietnam Group 468 4,743
Renovation of factories and MBEEE - BEKER
purchases of items of HEIEE
machinery and equipment 3,864 9,352
4,486 26,303

Operating lease commitments as at

31 March 2019

The Group leased certain of its factories premises
under operating lease arrangements which were
negotiated for terms of one to six years and five
months.

At 31
minimum

March 2019, the Group had total future
lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

(b)

—E-AF=A=+—HHNE
EHERE
FEERBEECEHETHERET
IR HPAER—FEENFAE
B o

R-B-—NEZA=+—0 F%
BRI S R ERTA
TR ARBERS@ENT -

HK$'000

FET

Within one year —FNRN 8,404
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FEELF (BEEEMSE) 13,773
After five years hF® 1,573

23,750
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33.

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in

these financial statements,

the Group had the

following material transactions with related parties

during the year:

FAEALRS

(a) BRAMBHRELMBHHBOR
S AEERENREEALE
FTFNERRS :

2020 2019
=t =t 1 —®—n%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 T#&T TET
A related company indirectly AXNB—&ZEFEBRKE
controlled by a substantial ] a2 4 ol O B
shareholder of the »NAE
Company:
Rental expense* HeRx* (i) 6,678 5,581
Service fee RBEE (ii) 9,307 7,412
Related companies directly —ZAXRABTEEFR
controlled by a person who BRE(ZE—HFE :
is a director and shareholder ZAEEBEZETHBAL
of the company (2019: a BZEERANT
director of certain B ER) B il R
subsidiaries of the Group ERA
and a shareholder of the
Company):
Subcontracting income RN (iii) 730 1,288
Subcontracting expense NBERX (iii) - 738
Substantial shareholder of ARNBEERRE :
the Company:
Service fee R % & (iv) 629 902

(i) The rental expense was charged at a monthly
rate of US$71,184 (2019: US$71,184) for the
year ended 31 March 2020 by reference to a
lease agreement entered into between
Pouyuen Vietnam Company Limited
(“Pouyuen Vietnam”), a related company
indirectly controlled by Yue Yuen, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, and
the Group for a term of three years
commencing on 1 June 2018.

(i) BERREDEEZREMITHEE
= %l B B E 2 BlPouyuen
Vietnam Company Limited
([ Pouyuen Vietnam |) B &
BiIIABR=FERIZF—/\
FEANB—HERWBEERZ -
HERINBE_S_SHE=
B=t+—HLELEE®REA
71184 T(Z T — N & :
71,1843 7T) K EX °



33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a) (continued)
(i) (continued)

& Right-of-use assets of HK$7,469,000 and
lease liabilities of HK$7,590,000 upon
adoption of HKFRS 16 related to the
leases with related parties were
recognised in consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2020.
During the year ended 31 March 2020,
depreciation of right-of-use assets of
HK$6,460,000 and finance costs on
lease liabilities of HK$342,000 were
recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

(i) The service fee to Pouyuen Vietham was made
on a basis mutually agreed by both parties.

(i) The subcontracting income and subcontracting
expense with Guangdong Dalian Garment Co.,
Limited (“Dalian Garment”) and Foshan City
Honglian Garment Co., Limited (“Honglian
Garment”), related companies controlled by
Mr. Huang Yongbiao, a director and
shareholder of the Company (2019: a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a
shareholder of the Company), were made on
a basis mutually agreed by both parties.

(iv)  The service fee paid to Pou Chen Corporation,
a substantial shareholder of the Company,
was charged on actual cost incurred.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i)
and (ii) above also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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3BEAEATRG @

(a) (&)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(&)
* RNEBVBREER
F16%K % HEE AL
HEERNERESE
7,469,000 T REHEE
&7,590,0008 TR =&
_EE=RA=+—HW
MEMBIRTRER -
HE_ZS_ZIF=H
=+—HLEFEERN &
FB #& & = 31 %6,460,000
BTLHEEENHE
B A342,0008 TTR &R E
W R -

48 F Pouyuen Vietnamf fR 75
EREFRAEZEEXMT-

B2 ARAEERER(Z
F-NF —HAEEETH
BRAZEERARAKRR)
BARREEEEHNEEARE
REBMRNRBRAE (EBHR
x]) RFBIUTRBEHERERA
Al ([RERK]) \EZ2 81
ARDBRXRETRAEZE
XA

BARAREEZRREMIER
ERABXNNRBERE
BRE £ R R A IKER

EXBORBHEZAEALRS
TR ETHRAUBUARREERN
FERERS -

278 B0 = (5 PEl) 22 8 QILINIT SONITT0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) JIIN 319V3

0202 LHOd3d TYNNNY

—&"

MbhbE




B9 B3 (HE)EH  0ILINNSONIAI0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) 3IIN 319V3

0202 LHOd3d TYNNNY

—&"

MhEE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Other transaction with a related party
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
acquired the Vietnam Group from Pro Kingtex, an
indirectly non-wholly-owned subsidiary of Yue Yuen.
Further details of the transaction are included in
note 29(a) to the financial statements.

Outstanding balances with related parties

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Included in accrued liabilities and other
payables is an amount due to Pouyuen
Vietnam of HK$2,706,000 (2019:
HK$2,740,000), which is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

As at 31 March 2019, included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables
was an amount due from Dalian Garment of
HK$9,837,000, which was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

As at 31 March 2019, included in accrued
liabilities and other payables was an amount
due from Dalian Garment of HK$760,000,
which was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

As at 31 March 2019, included in accounts and
bills receivables were amounts due from
Dalian Garment and Honglian Garment of
HK$1,264,000, which were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The directors are the key management personnel of
the Group. Details of their remuneration are
disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements.

3B.AEATRG @

(b) HEREEALTZEMKRS
AEBRBE_F—-—NLE=ZA
=t+—HIEEERNBRTZEESE
2 &M B AT Pro Kingtex & & it &5
£ - TR E—THBER
B 7 IR R B 5E29(a) ©

(c) EREAEANLTZRIEFLERS
(i)  FEftPouyuen VietnamBJ X IE
2,706,000 T (ZF —HF
2,740,000 7T) st NFESt BB
REMEMTUE - BEER -

REREREREE -

(i) RZB-—HAE=ZRA=+—8"
& WAz gt B 2K A9 7R IR9, 837,000
BILFABRMNRE RELHE
KRR - REER 28
RARERESE -

(i) RZFB—AE=ZRA=+—8"
& W32 gk B2 % /9 R IH 760,000
BRI ABSEERAMEN
RE REER REREAR
EREE -

(v, RZB—-NAE=BA=+—8"
& VAT 58 B B X Je 7 Bt B AR O R
181,264,000/ 7T 51 A FE W BR
AERER ARER &EK
BAREKREE-

(d) EERFEEZTEEBEAR W
FFH N 2 1B R MBS R R M EEeIR

==

égo



34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

Financial assets

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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34. TR T R 5%

EREMITERBSHPRNREAENT

EREE

2020 2019
—_BEF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#&ET FHET
Financial assets at amortised cost: REBHEBRAIRNEMEE -
Accounts and bills receivables EWER A E B 243,944 411,242
Financial assets included in FFATEMRIE  REk
prepayments, deposits and other HEMEKRFRENS R EE
receivables 15,363 22,866
Pledged deposits BiREER - 15,204
Restricted bank balance 5 PRl SR 1T 45 B8R 547 585
Cash and bank balances Re &IBITHER 341,156 193,834
601,010 643,731
Financial liabilities ERMEE
2020 2019
—BEHF “E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&ET FHBT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: RIBHB AT RN EREE ¢
Accounts and bills payables EARAKRERE 236,856 258,169
Financial liabilities included in AR BB R A RN
accrued liabilities and other RENEHERE
payables 49,397 52,894
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITER 530,800 572,155
Lease liabilities HE&E 14,029 —
831,082 883,218

The directors consider the carrying amounts of all
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost approximate to their fair values as at the
end of the reporting period largely due to the short term B o
maturities of these instruments.

EERR RESHR - FIEREBHEKE
TENERMEERSHMABEREERE
NFERE  KRBHERZFLENZHE
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35. TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a)

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety

The following table provides a summary of financial
assets that have been transferred in such a way
that part of the transferred financial assets do not
qualify for derecognition, together with the
associated liabilities:

Bills endorsement under the Law of
Negotiable Instruments of the PRC

3. EEREMEE

(a)

AEMBUERNEFREME
B

TRV|ACERSRMEED  UF
TEBUHERER T XANERT D
REMHBEEE

RIBPERBEENEBEE

2020 2019
- Jan- - 3 —_EB-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#&ET THET

Carrying amount of assets that FEERERNESEREE
continued to be recognised 1,880 7,618

Carrying amount of associated HEEENIREE

liabilities 1,880 7,618

At 31 March 2020, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China
(the "Endorsed Bills”) with a carrying amount of
HK$1,880,000 (2019: HK$7,618,000) to certain of its
suppliers in order to settle the accounts payable
due to such suppliers (the “Endorsement”). In the
opinion of the directors, the Group has retained the
substantial risks and rewards, which include default
risks relating to such Endorsed Bills, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full
carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills and the
associated accounts payable settled. Subsequent to
the Endorsement, the Group did not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including
the sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to
any other third parties. The aggregate carrying
amount of the accounts payable settled by the
Endorsed Bills during the year to which the
suppliers have recourse was HK$1,880,000 (2019:
HK$7,618,000) as at 31 March 2020.

NR_FB_FBEF=HF=+—H *&
BaosaTHERSERAEE
1,880,000i& (= & — Hh &
7,618,000% 7T) E & R Bl K EIR 1T
EZS2ETEREB(EEE
Bl UEBERGZSEHERZE
TERR(NEE]) EFRAE F&E
BNRBERERBKER SF5
EEZEBZENREE Rt ~A&H
HERIAEEZBZMEREAR
HEEEBZEMER - REE
B AEBLEEREBEMAYERS
EZBRZEN GFRHE BHED
RESEZEBETEMEME=AZ
B -FRNEEEEZEBRIM 24
[EREEREZEMERN-ISZZ
FE=ZBA=+—HZEHEEES
1,880,000Tt( = &/ — Hh £ :
7,618,000 T5) °



35. TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)

(b)

Transferred financial assets that are
derecognised in their entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of
Negotiable Instruments of the PRC

At 31 March 2019, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by certain reputable banks in
Mainland China (the “Derecognised Bills”) to certain
of its suppliers in order to settle the accounts
payable due to such suppliers with a carrying
amount in aggregate of HK2,808,000. The
Derecognised Bills had a maturity of one to three
months as at 31 March 2019. In accordance with the
Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the
holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right of
recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default
(the "Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the
directors, the Group had transferred substantially all
risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills.
Accordingly, it had derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the
associated accounts payable. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills was equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills were not significant.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
had not recognised any gain or loss on the date of
transfer of the Derecognised Bills. No gains or
losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during that year or cumulatively.
The endorsement had been made evenly
throughout that year.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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3. EEEEREEw

(b)

ERRILERNVEHREM
BE

REFEEBEEZNEBEEE

RIFE-NAF=ZBE=+—H &%
EoEs THERSEREEE
2,808,000 B TEEA TEBERFN
FEAERTEZ Z2ETRKER
([ IEFERER]) UEBEMZ
EHEBZEMER -RZIZF—H
F=ZHB=+—H KRIEREE—
E-EANEE -REFEHERE
BN EREPRERITEL - KIERE
REBZREAGERAERR T
EBR(FHE2HE]) - BEERA K
SEEEREHRARILERERZE
KB AR KEER - "L AEE
RIEEREIEEREBZAERA
BURHBERMERR  AEBE A
Ejﬁ%tﬁmﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
LHEREBZRITRREEREZ
AKEERBRESENEREE - %%
RAE AEBERFESHKEIEERE
BZAFELARAEKX -

BE_E-NF=ZAZ=+—HL#F
ERN AEEREERILERRE
Bt R E MR m AR - R&
FNRURG  MEEDBREFE
BHNKRZHER ERZBESF
EREHEFLES -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. WERAREEZEHERKE

B9 B3 (HE)EH  0ILINNSONIAI0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) 3IIN 319V3

0202 LHOd3d TYNNNY

—&"

MhEE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash and bank
balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as accounts and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, a restricted bank balance, pledged
deposits, accounts and bills payables, financial liabilities
included in accrued liabilities and other payables and
lease liabilities, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’'s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
liquidity risk and credit risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’'s
interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating interest
rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating
interest rate borrowings in order to manage its interest
rate risk. The interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash
and bank balances are stated at amortised cost and not
revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest
income and expenses are credited/charged to the
income statement as earned/incurred.

AEENTIESRMIASENRRITE
ARBERIRITER ZFEMTEREZE
ZENREELEELEMFTEE - &5
EEAEBRIRRERE FAEMRE BE
MEMEBRHREMEENEREE R
HIRTAERR ERMAER BNRREER
BRESFEEREMEMNREREEN
TRHEEFEEEMEREERERE T
REEEREEESE -

FEEEMIBEZTERBIRBAR
Rk - SMEREER - MEBEERRREER
B-EEgERLHEEESERRER
ZBUR - R -

I 2= [ B
AEEMARZT BN ERBHEREE
HEASEEZIHANRFRBNIRITEER
o

FEEEHEELERIEEEUERE
HARER - st RIRTERRBEERIRT
ERIREBERANER MAGEHER -
FEMBWA R HR R RE R
EEA FLUER ER -



36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's net profit
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

Notes to Financial Statements (cuminued)
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36. WHREMBEE 2 BIERKEK

(&)

FIRE bR ()
TRERHMBEAMBSERETE K&
HaM(AFZEEEXTE)HAXZAE
7] BE S B R UK -

Increase in Decrease

interest rate in net

(basis points) profit

=g (EE) 1 R 2D

HK$'000

TFHET

2020 ol =Sl <Y -3 100 4,432

2019 —EB-NEF 100 4,777
Foreign currency risk 4h EE & &

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from a substantial portion of sales or
purchases by operating units in United States dollars
("US$") and RMB. As the foreign currency risk arising
from sales and purchases can be set off with each other
given that the Hong Kong dollars are pegged to US$, the
Group believes its exposure to exchange rate risk is
minimal. It is the policy of the Group to continue
maintaining the balance of its sales and purchases in the
same currency. However, as the functional currency of
the PRC subsidiaries is RMB and the Group’s financial
statements are reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will
be a translation credit/(debit) to the exchange fluctuation
reserve as a result of RMB appreciation/(depreciation).
The majority of the Group’s operating assets are located
in Mainland China and denominated in RMB.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management monitors the
foreign exchange exposures and will consider hedging
the significant foreign currency exposures should the
need arise.

AEEARRZEKRR - B RRAR
PHEEBEUMNET(ETD RARKE
EITEEEL -HNBTHEITHIE B
BEEAZERRIUERRE ~5E
RS H S BE JE R R A - A B [ Ak 1 A 15
MEREHKETEE Z FEBX - A
HRPENRBEARUARERINEER
RAEBEZMBRRIDLUBTER - A
RigAE/(RESEELTFN (GO
BEXKBSREENELZEE -AEEX
MOoEBEEEHMNPEKE  LUAR
HEtE-

AEB B EIMEE PR - AT B
EERRIERR LEERFERHT
BEXRIMERRR -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. WAREEZBERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continved ()
Foreign currency risk (continued) ShEE B\ B (4%)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the TRINTAEE M E A REERNIE
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible SHRAGEEE A ESE (FiE Ein s
- change in the RMB exchange rate, with all other BEERTE) 2HRE(HREBKEER
E variables held constant, of the Group's net profit (due to BEATEEE) :
E changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
m liabilities):
=
% Increase/ Increase/
g; (decrease) in (decrease)
E exchange rate in net profit
S EEXLH “EFEin,
= (F %) (B2
& HK$'000
S T T
=
S 2020 - k- -¥-
= If HK$ strengthens against RMB HMETREAREAE 3% (2,702)
If HK$ weakens against RMB MBTRARKEE (3%) 2,702
B 2019 —EB-hEF
B If HK$ strengthens against RMB HMETRE AREAE 3% (1,671)
= If HKS weakens against RMB HBETRAREEME (3%) 1,671
i
B>
& Liquidity risk BN E 2 A
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEBFEALEERSESHRETEE
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the RESHRZARK ZEIEZEZESH
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial TERTMEE(NEREREER)Z
2 assets (e.g., accounts and bills receivables) and the HEHBER UEREEERZEERENE
g projected cash flows from operations. Al o
=
§ The Group maintains a balance between continuity of AEEZBFEAGERRTERREMIE
3 funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing THEREE ERESFEHEREER
S bank borrowings and other banking facilities. The ZENTE EFCRNAEENEES
¥ directors have reviewed the Group's working capital and EREATHETKR  URRAEELEE
R capital expenditure requirements and determined that the KRB E SRR -

Group has no significant liquidity risk.

A
A/
il
&




36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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36. WBEAREEZBBRRBE

(%)

RENE = RBE ()
RBERR  AEEERBESHORTEMN
REEZERMBBEIHERNT :

2020 —E-FF
On demand
or within
1year 1 to 5 years Total
H—FRN 1E55E #st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT TET TERT
Accounts and bills TR AKX EE
payables 236,856 - 236,856
Financial liabilities included 5t N E 5t B & R H A fE 1T
in accrued liabilities and RIENERAE
other payables 49,397 - 49,397
Interest-bearing bank FFERITER
borrowings 532,176 — 532,176
Lease liabilities HEAE 8,022 6,923 14,945
826,451 6,923 833,374
2019 —F-NEF

On demand or
within one year

X—FN

HK$'000

FHET

Accounts and bills payables EERR R ZIR 258,169
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities and TANFEFEBREMER

other payables RENERHERE 52,894

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FEIBITER 573,278

884,341

278 B0 = (5 PEl) 22 8 QILINIT SONITT0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) JIIN 319V3

020¢ 140434 TVNNNY

—&T

MbhbE




B9 B3 (HE)EH  0ILINNSONIAI0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) 3IIN 319V3

0202 1H0d34 TVNNNY

—&T

EEEE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2020
—ECFF-H=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 March. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

2020
12-month
ECLs
+=@A
EHEE
BB
Stage 1
F—REER
HK$'000
FHET
Accounts receivable* e s B R > -
Bills receivable fE W R %
— Normal** — IEER 3,876
Financial assets included in SFAFEMRE - &S
prepayments, deposits and T L At & W R IE K
other receivables EREE
— Normal** — IEER 15,363
Restricted bank balance Z R IRIT A5 BR
— Not yet past due — K@ 547
Cash and bank balances & RIRITHEER
— Not yet past due — K@ 341,156

36. UBRABEEZBEEREE

(%)

EE b
AEHEERIREERFNE=Z77E
IR5 - AEEEHEUGREIARZH
FIERRETEESEE - 1 BIRFUE
BRTEEHEESR-

EERBRFEERERD R
TRHEJIERAEENEEBRNEE
BERrkESEERR FEERGHEH
(RERMERNTEEANE RO ERAR
HENNBERTERS)  ER=ZA=+—
BRFEEREDT - FTEINEREERE
TREEMRKREE-

—ECFEF
Lifetime ECLs

SHAPEEER
Simplified

Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

EREER F=EER B HE ]
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T#ET TET TET T#ET

240,068 240,068

- - - 3,876

- - - 15,363

- - - 547

- - - 341,156

360,942

240,068 601,010
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. WEEAKRERE 2 BERBUER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging RERBRELEEER T E)
(continued)
2019 —EF—-NF
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+_@A
FEHEE
B8 SHBEHEEBE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
£—IEE FEER E=EER A A= FE-

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET FET THET

278 B0 = (5 PEl) 22 8 QILINIT SONITT0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) JIIN 319V3

Accounts receivable* & W BR TR % — — — 403,624 403,624
Bills receivable fE R
— Normal** — IEE** 7,618 — — — 7,618
Financial assets included in FFAEMRE - &k
prepayments, deposits and B E At FE W FRIBE R
other receivables EREE
— Normal** — IEE** 22,866 — — — 22,866
Pledged deposits EREFER
— Not yet past due — R H 15,204 — — — 15,204
Restricted bank balance ZREIIRIT AR
— Not yet past due — XK@ 585 = = = 585
Cash and bank balances W& RIRITHER
— Not yet past due — R 193,834 — — — 193,834
240,107 — — 403,624 643,731
z
@ For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the 3 BEAEEMBEREERRBELAEANE )%
simplified approach for impairment allowance is disclosed in WER A GE BN M BRI 19K E - =
note 19 to the financial statements. %
=3
**  The credit quality of the bills receivable and the financial assets > BEAEAMRE RekEMEKREZ 5
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables is BREBrEMEERGY  BEENE
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and TEMEENEERRBALEIRREEE J%'(
there is no information indicating that the financial assets had EXREMN WHEEEEEERAIES] - [

a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. WERAREEZEHERKE
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. Capital includes bank borrowings and equity
attributable to owners of the Company. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2020
and 2019.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which
is total current assets divided by total current liabilities.
The Group's policy is to keep the current ratio above 1.
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:
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 AREBHBRRR

BRARBRBEHRNMBRIRN
BEBMT :

2020 2019
—E-EH —EB-NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBAB ZHE 43,368 43,368
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Due from subsidiaries & I B I 2 A 2,380,018 2,153,928
Loan to a subsidiary ERT—EHBEAR - 118,500
Prepayments TE IR 109 219
Cash and bank balances e RIRITERR 905 1,439
Total current assets MBI EELEE 2,381,032 2,274,086
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEfE
Due to subsidiaries ERHE AT 1,511,169 1,306,812
Accrued liability [Esta®’ — 407
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERIBITER - 118,500
Tax payable FE T #2118 365 1,079
Total current liabilities TE B RAR{E 1,511,534 1,426,798
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENE ERE 869,498 847,288
Net assets BEFRE 912,866 890,656
EQUITY =
Issued capital EZITERA 5,320 5,320
Reserves (note) fEfE (fEEE) 907,546 885,336
Total equity BEAXRBE 912,866 890,656

278 B0 = (5 PEl) 22 8 QILINIT SONITT0H (TYNOILYNHILNI) JIIN 319V3
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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37.

38.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)

37. X B BIRRRR @

Note: Bz
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ANEREEZBMENT -
Share
premium Capital Retained
account reserve profits Total
Bt
EEER BREE BEGEHM et
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B 55 FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2018 RZF—/)\FWMB—H 472,586 43,088 294,750 810,424
Profit and total comprehensive FREAMNREE KR
income for the year 4azE — — 111,101 111,101
Issue of shares TR 27 93,728 = = 93,728
Final 2018 dividend “EB-)\ERBRE 11 = — (59,962) (59,962)
Interim 2019 dividend ZE-AEFREERE 11 = — (69,955) (69,955)
At 31 March 2019 and RIF—N%F
1 April 2019 =A=+—HEK
—F-NAFWMA—H 566,314 43,088 275,934 885,336
Profit and total comprehensive FREHEAREHE KRS
income for the year #BEE - - 160,530 160,530
Final 2019 dividend “E-NERPERER 11 - - (31,920) (31,920)
Interim 2020 dividend “_FS_FEHRHEERR 1M - - (106,400) (106,400)
At 31 March 2020 RIBZFHF
=B=+—H 566,314 43,088 298,144 907,546

The capital reserve of the Company represents the
excess of the then consolidated net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to the
Reorganisation over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the
capital reserve may be distributed to the shareholders of
the Company, provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off
its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors of the Company on
30 June 2020.

ARBERFBREALDREBEEMERK
BRBARERNGAEERE BHA
RITZARNBDRAEEZER - RIEFH
ERERAE BEARBIUDIRFARA
R EREERERRMREESHE K
REDAREEEEEEPEHERE -
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